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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Wanjia
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the audited financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW

On 11 October 2013, the Company was spun-off from Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua Xia"”) and listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) by way of introduction.

The Group continued to focus on pharmaceutical wholesales and
distribution business and pharmaceutical retail chain business in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Our Group has a large and broad customer base through our
distribution network in Fujian Province in the PRC. Our Group
distributes pharmaceutical products to our customers located
principally in the Fujian Province and also sells pharmaceutical
products in neighboring provinces. Total revenue generated from
pharmaceutical wholesales and distribution business for the year
ended 31 March 2015 was approximately HK$1,346.925 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 27.52% as compared to
2014.

Our Group also operates pharmaceutical retail business through
Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited ({832
B meEsEEEREE2QT) which was accounted for as one
of our subsidiaries. We have an established retail network in Fujian
Province in the PRC. As at 31 March 2015, we directly operated
119 (2014: 111) retail pharmacies in six prefectural — level districts
of the Fujian Province in the PRC under the brand name “Huihao
Sihai".

*  English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Management’s Statement
ESEEBRE

The turnover contributed by the pharmaceutical retail business for
the year ended 31 March 2015 was approximately HK$220.762
million, representing a decrease of approximately 7.28% as
compared to 2014.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year, total turnover of the Group for the year
was approximately HK$1,567.687 million in comparison with
approximately HK$2,096.455 million in 2014, representing a
decrease of approximately 25.22% compared with last year. The
gross profit of the Group was approximately HK$159.845 million
in comparison with HK$189.464 million in 2014. The net loss
attributable to the owners of the Company was approximately
HK$772.949 million in comparison with profit of HK$48.920
million in 2014.

PROSPECTS

The management of the Group has realised that the new Good
Supply Practice (“New GSP”) implemented by the China Food
and Drug Administration is a challenge as well as a potential
opportunities for the Group to continue to address the needs of
the market and the public through refined services and quality

products.

It is a challenge as well as a potential opportunities for the group
because the promulgation and implementation of the new Good
Supply Practice in Fujian, the PRC in 2014 imposes stringent
regulations on pharmaceutical distributor operation which caused
significant decrease in pharmaceutical wholesales business of
the group on the ground that majority of the existing distributor
customers of the group who are not qualified enterprises
under the new Good Supply Practice were walked out from the
sector. Also, due to the constraint of the existing direct sale
distribution facilities of the group, it is unable to cater for all the
market shares on distribution sale business which are covered
by those existing distributor customers. Nevertheless, it is also a
potential opportunities for the group because in August 2014,
Fujian Food and Drug Administration* (B2 ¥ B REREE

EHEF) announced that 10 companies which are permitted to

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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conduct the business in the distribution to public hospitals and
public healthcare institutions after 2016, in which the operating
subsidiary of the Company, namely (EEE@MHT EFEEFR
/A 7)) Fujian Province Funzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical Co.
Limited* is on the list. The pharmaceutical market consolidation
has continued at national and local level providing opportunities
for companies with large scale operations like the Group and our
group would actively look for further development opportunities
made available by the continued healthcare reform arisen from
the New GSP. We will also continue further strengthen our drug
delivery to hospitals and wholesales segments business and

expansion of retails pharmacies in the year 2015/16.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the management team and staff for their tireless
dedicated that helps fuel the Group’s healthy development. In
addition, | would also like to thank all our shareholders, business
partners and customers for their continuous support. We will
continue to devote unwavering efforts to reap promising returns

for all parties.

Chen Jinshan

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 June 2015

*  English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SR B 5T K A i

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of the results of the Group for the financial year ended
31 March 2015 is as follows:

o Total turnover was approximately HK$1,567.687 million
(2014: approximately HK$2,096.455 million), representing
approximately 25.22% of decrease over 2014. The decrease
in turnover was mainly driven by the sales from the
pharmaceutical wholesales and distribution segment due to
the implementation of the New GSP in 2014.

o Gross profit was approximately HK$159.845 million
(2014: approximately HK$189.464 million), representing

approximately 15.63% of decrease over 2014.

o The operating loss was approximately HK$756.511 million
(2014 profit of approximately HK$80.196 million). Net
loss for the year was mainly due to the written off of the
goodwill of approximately HK$785.169 million. If such effect
was taken out, the Group recorded a profit from operation
of approximately HK$28.658 million though it was an

approximately 64.27% decrease as compared to last year.

o Net loss attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$772.949 million (2014: profit of
approximately HK$48.920 million).

o The Group had total cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$43.029 million as at 31 March 2015 (31
March 2014: approximately HK$43.638 million).

o The board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: Nil).

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

On 11 October 2013, the Company was spun-off from Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua Xia"”) and listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock

Exchange”) by way of introduction.

The Group continues to focus on pharmaceutical wholesales and
distribution business and pharmaceutical retail chain business in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Turnover

Looking back at 2014/15, the Group’s revenue experienced
a decrease. The Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$1,567.687 million (2014: approximately HK$2,096.455
million) for the year ended 31 March 2015, accounting for a
decrease of approximately 25.22% over last year. The gross profit
margin of the Group was approximately 10%, which maintained

at a similar level as in 2014.

Pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business

The Group has a large and broad customer base through our
distribution network in Fujian Province in the PRC. The Group
distributes pharmaceutical products to our customers located
principally in the Fujian Province and also sells pharmaceutical
products in neighboring provinces such as Guangdong, Hunan,
Hubei, Jiangxi, Aunhui and Zhejiang. Our customers can be
categorized into three types namely hospitals and healthcare
institutions, distributor customers and end customers such
as companies operating pharmaceutical retail chain stores,
independent pharmacies, and outpatient departments of
community hospitals, healthcare service stations and clinics.
The turnover generated from the pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business amounted to approximately HK$1,346.925
million (2014: approximately HK$1,858.355 million), representing
approximately 27.52% of decrease over 2014 and accounted for
approximately 85.92% of the Group’s turnover. The decrease
was mainly attributable to the reduction in sales to distributor
customers due to the stringent regulations after the promulgation

and implementation of the New GSP.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SR B0 K R i

Pharmaceutical retail chain business

The Group operates pharmaceutical retail business through Fujian
Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited" ({82 %=
IS EEH AR E( A E) which was accounted for as one
of our subsidiaries. The Group offers a wide variety of products
in our retail pharmacies including prescription medicines, over-
the-counter medicines, healthcare food products, traditional
Chinese medicines, medical supplies and medical devices. As
at 31 March 2015, 119 (2014:

operated. The Group seeks to introduce new products and services

111) retail pharmacies were

to meet changing customer preferences and to differentiate
the Group from our competitors. The turnover generated from
pharmaceutical retail chain business amounted to approximately
HK$220.762 million (2014: approximately HK$238.100 million),

representing approximately 7.28% of decrease over 2014.

Because the effect of the implementation of the New GSP is
uncertain, only 8 new retail pharmacies are being opened in
Fujian Province in the PRC. We would closely monitor the further
development of the new GSP and open our retail pharmacies

steadily.

Other revenue

Other revenue, primarily including sundry income, bank interest
income, exhibition income and rental income amounted to
approximately HK$6.379 million (2014: approximately HK$7.543
million) for the year ended 31 March 2015.

* English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consisted of salaries
paid to sales and marketing personnel and rental expenses of
retail pharmacies. For the year ended 31 March 2015, selling and
distribution expenses amounted to approximately HK$90.590
million (2014: approximately HK$70.524 million), representing
an increase of approximately 28.45% over the last year. The
increase in the expenses was due to the increase in the number of

subsidiaries and retail pharmacies during the year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2015
amounted to approximately HK$46.854 million (2014:
approximately HK$47.033 million), representing a slightly decrease
of approximately 0.38% over last year. However, by excluding
the expenses incurred for the listing of Company’s shares on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange last year, the administrative
expenses incurred last year was approximately HK$42.278 million.
The administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2015
represented an increase of approximately 10.82% over the last
year. More administrative expenses incurred mainly due to the

expansion of the business scale.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the finance costs of the
Group were approximately HK$8.819 million (2014: approximately
HK$6.015 million), representing a significant increase of
approximately 46.62% over the last year. The increase was mainly
due to increased average outstanding amounts of bank loans
during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SR B0 Kk i

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

The Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$772.949 million (2014: profit
of approximately HK$48.920 million) during the year ended 31
March 2015.

The net loss was mainly attributable to the impairment loss on the

goodwill of approximately HK$785.169 million.

In August 2014, Fujian Food and Drug Administration* (@& &
EMEMREEEER) announced the 10 companies which are
permitted to conduct the business in the distribution to public
hospitals and public healthcare institutions after 2016, in which
the operating subsidiary of the Company, namely (B2 & &
M BT EZEFRR QA A) Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao
Pharmaceutical Co. Limited” is on the list. Notwithstanding this
recognition as a qualified participant in the distribution industry
is encouraging, the effect of the implementation of the New GSP
and any future policy development on the hospital distribution
business of the Group remains uncertain. Having taken into
account the financial performance as of June 2014, the Board
reviewed again the potential effects of the New GSP on the
distribution business in late July 2014 and prudently lowered
the forecasted performance in sales to distributor customers,
therefore, it triggers impairment loss on the goodwill. The carrying
amount of goodwill was tested for impairment as at 30 June
2014. The impairment test compared the discounted cash flow of
the cash-generating units (CGUs) to the carrying amounts of the
CGUs. The recoverable amounts of the CGUs were significantly
less than the carrying value of goodwill, therefore, an impairment
loss on the goodwill of approximately HK785.169 million was

made in the year under review.

*  English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS
The management of the Group has realised that the New GSP

is a challenge as well as a potential opportunities for the Group
to continue to address the needs of the market and the public

through refined services and quality products.

It is a challenge as well as a potential opportunities for the
group because the promulgation and implementation of the
new Good Supply Practice in Fujian, the PRC in 2014 imposes
stringent regulations on pharmaceutical distributor operation
which caused decrease in pharmaceutical wholesales business of
the group on the ground that majority of the existing distributor
customers of the group who are not qualified enterprises
under the new Good Supply Practice were walked out from the
sector. Also, due to the constraint of the existing direct sale
distribution facilities of the group, it is unable to cater for all the
market shares on distribution sale business which are covered
by those existing distributor customers. Nevertheless, it is also a
potential opportunities for the group because in August 2014,
Fujian Food and Drug Administration* (EEZE A REREE
EHE /) announced that 10 companies which are permitted to
conduct the business in the distribution to public hospitals and
public healthcare institutions after 2016, in which the operating
subsidiary of the Company, namely Fujian Province Funzhou City
Huihao Pharmaceutical Co. Limited* (B2 ERBM T BIFHEFR

AA]) is on the list.

The pharmaceutical market consolidation has continued at
national and local level providing opportunities for companies
with large scale operations like the Group. At the same time,
competition among the industry is keen. Our group would actively
look for further development opportunities made available by the
continued healthcare reform arisen from the New GSP. We will
also continue further strengthen our drug delivery to hospitals and
wholesales segments business and expansion of retails pharmacies
in the year 2015/16.

* English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SR B 5T K A i

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had total cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$43.029 million as at 31 March 2015 (2014: approximately
HK$43.638 million). The Group recorded total current assets of
approximately HK$618.170 million as at 31 March 2015 (2014:
approximately HK$621.814 million) and total current liabilities of
approximately HK$372.296 million as at 31 March 2015 (2014:
approximately HK$386.996 million). The current ratio of the
Group, calculated by dividing the current assets by the current
liabilities, was approximately 1.660 as at 31 March 2015 (2014:
approximately 1.607).

As at 31
approximately 28.65% based on outstanding debts (comprising

March 2015, the Group's gearing ratio was

bank borrowings) less cash and cash equivalents over total equity
(including all capital and reserves attributable to owners of the

Company) (2014: approximately 4.25%).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group had no material capital

commitment.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Save for the Group Reorganisation as described in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements and those described in the
Listing Document, during the year ended 31 March 2015, there

were acquisition of subsidiaries as follows:
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 9 April 2014, Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao
Pharmaceutical Co. Limited* (“Fuzhou Huihao"”), a wholly
owned subsidiary (the “Purchaser”) and Hui Hao Yi Yao (Xiamen)
Company Limited* (formerly name as Xiamen Hui Sheng Yi Yao
Company Limited) (“Xiamen Huihao"”), a PRC pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution corporation, entered into an
arrangement agreement in relation to the conditional acquisition
60% of net assets value of Xiamen Huihao (the “Proposed
Acquisition”) by the Purchaser. The consideration of acquisition
is approximately RMB4.945 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$6.204 million). Upon completion of the Proposed Acquisition
on 21 April 2014, Xiamen Huihao became a 60% owned

subsidiary of the Purchaser.

In June 2014, Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical
Co. Limited* ("Fuzhou Huihao"), a wholly owned subsidiary (the
“Purchaser”) and Hui Hao Yi Yao (Nanping) Company Limited
(formerly name as Fu Jian Sheng Heng Chang Yao Ye Company
Limited) (“Nanping Huihao”), a PRC pharmaceutical wholesale
and distribution corporation, entered into an arrangement
agreement in relation to the conditional acquisition 60% of net
assets value of Nanping Huihao (the “Proposed Acquisition”) by
the Purchaser. The consideration of acquisition is approximately
RMB7.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$9.452 million).
Upon completion of the Proposed Acquisition on 15 June
2014, Nanping Huihao became a 60% owned subsidiary of the
Purchaser.

After the acquisitions, the Company had engaged an independent
qualified professional valuer to measure the fair value of the
property, plant and equipment on the completion date. All the
goodwill arising from the above acquisitions has been reflected in

the Company’s financial statement ended 31 March 2015.

*  English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SR B 51 K 7 ifr

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, no member of the Group was
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and
no litigation or claim of material importance was known to the
directors to be pending or threatened against any member of the

Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Since almost all transactions of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars and most of the bank deposits
are being kept in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars to minimize
exposure to foreign exchange risk, the directors consider that the

Group's risk exposure to currency fluctuations to be minimal.

Therefore, the Group had not implemented any formal hedging
or other alternative policies to deal with such exposure during the

year.

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had bank borrowings
outstanding balances and bill payables of approximately
HK$121.454 million and HK$18.697 million respectively. The
Group's pledged bank deposits, prepaid lease payments and
investment properties of approximately HK$12.970 million,
HK$4.530 million and HK$8.093 million respectively, were pledged

as collateral to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year, the revenue of the Group was principally
generated from: (1) pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution
business and (2) pharmaceutical retail chain business in PRC.
Financial information in respect of these operations is presented in

Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2015, the total issued share capital of the
Company was approximately HK$6.484 million representing
648,405,300 ordinary shares. As at 31 March 2013, the share
capital of the Group represents the issued share capital of
the Company, Luxuriant Expand Global Investments Limited
and Timely Hero Enterprises Limited prior to completion of

Reorganisation.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had 1,046 (2014: 1,176) full
time employees (including directors) as shown in the following
table:

Number of Staff

S 8575 K 7 i

B RE
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For the year ended 31 March 2015, staff costs (including directors
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$71.278 million
(2014: approximately HK$60.670 million). The Group remunerates
its employees based on individual performance and qualification.
Apart from the basic remuneration, staff benefits include
the contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme,
discretionary bonus and medical coverage in Hong Kong; and
basic insurance for the elderly, basic medical insurance, work
injury insurance and unemployment insurance to the employees in
the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SR B 5T K A i

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 12 May 2015, Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited (“Huihao Hong
Kong"), Fuzhou Ren An Medical Technology Limited* (g M1{=%
BEZME AR AT) ("Ren An") and Fujian Province Fuzhou City
Huihao Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd ("Fuzhou Haihao") entered into
the Joint Venture Agreement, pursuant to which Ren An agreed to
make a capital contribution of approximately RMB26 million to the
registered capital and the capital reserve of Fuzhou Huihao. The
Capital Increase constituted a deemed disposal of Wanjia's equity
interest in the Fuzhou Huihao and resulted that the equity interest
of Huihao Hong Kong in Fuzhou Huihao was diluted from 100%
to 75% and the Fuzhou Huihao is held as to 75% by Huihao Hong
Kong and as to 25% by Ren An.

On 14 May 2015, the Company entered into the Placing
Agreement with the Placing Agent pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to place, through the Placing
Agent, on a best efforts basis, the Convertible Notes with principal
amounts aggregating up to HK$84,292,000 to the Placees at the
initial Conversion Price of HK$0.65 per Conversion Share (“the
Placing”). Based on the initial Conversion Price of HK$0.65 per
Conversion Share, a total of 129,680,000 Conversion Shares
will be allotted and issued upon exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the Convertible Notes in full. The Placing was

completed on 1 June 2015.

*  English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profiles

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Weng Jiaxing (“Mr. Weng”), aged 39, joined our Group
in 2004 as the Chairman of Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited (“Hui
Hao Hong Kong”) and was appointed as an executive Director
on 9 July 2012. He was responsible for exploring investment
opportunities in the PRC, formulating business strategies and
overseeing the entire business operation of our Group. Mr.
Weng was admitted to the 2008 Executive Master of Business
Administration (EMBA) course administered by Xiamen University
in December 2007. Mr. Weng has not less than 8 years of
managerial experience in pharmaceutical businesses. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Weng was the General Manager of Fujian
Huihao Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited* (“FHP Chain”)
from 2003 to 2004 where he was responsible for the entire
business operation of FHP Chain. Mr. Weng had been an executive
director of Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua Xia")
during the period from 25 April 2006 to 1 August 2007 and from
26 March 2010 to 28 December 2012. Save that Mr. Weng is a
nephew of Mr. Yung Kwok Leong, a substantial shareholder and
an executive director of Hua Xia, being a Controlling Shareholder,
and a brother of Mr. Weng Jiale (%),
shareholder of Fujian Huihao Pharmaceutical Company Limited*

the controlling

("FHP Company”) and FHP Chain, both being landlords of certain
premises leased by our Group, Mr. Weng is not related to other
Shareholders and our Directors. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
Weng did not hold any directorship in any other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong
Kong or overseas in the last three years.

*  English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Directors’ and Senior Management's Profiles

ESNSHREBASEHE

Mr. Chen Yong (“Mr. Chen"), aged 44 joined our Group as the
Director of President’s Office of Huihao Hong Kong in July 2006
and was appointed as an executive Director on 4 September
2012. In May 2008, Mr. Chen became the Managing Director of
Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited® (&
BHGNEEREBEHE AR A T) (“Huihao Sihai”) and was
responsible for the overall operation and management of the
Company. He became Vice Chairman of our Group in June 2011.
He has a master of Business Administration degree in Fudan
University ( L& B KXE2) . Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chen
was the Assistant to Managing Director and the manager of the
investment development department of Shanghai Cheung Kong
New Hope Enterprise Company Limited* ( EBRIHHFENES
PRA®]) from 8 October 2002 to 5 December 2005 and he was
responsible for assisting the managing director in setting direction
and goals of business operation as well as managing investment

projects.

Mr. Yung Ka Chun (“Mr. Yung”), aged 26, obtained his Master
Degree of Science in Business majoring in Accounting from the
University of Maryland, College Park in the United States. Mr.
Yung is the son of Mr. Yung Kwok Leong who is the substantial
shareholder of Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (stock code:
8143), the shares of which is listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM"), which in turn is the substantial shareholder of
the Company.

Mr. Chen Jinshan (“Mr. Chen”), aged 47, holds a bachelor
degree in finance and accounting. Mr. Chen has over 15 years
of accounting experience and had also been a project manager
for more than 6 years in an accounting firm. Mr. Chen was the
executive director of Hua Xia, the shares of which are listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange for the period from 25 April 2006 to
10 October 2014.

Ms. Shum Ngai Pan, aged 42, holds a Master's Degree in
Business Administration. She has over 16 years of managerial
experience in companies engaged in the healthcare and

environmental protection sectors.

*  English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profiles

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Liang Yichi (“Mr. Liang”), aged 62, joined our Group as
an independent non-executive Director on 4 September 2012.
Mr. Liang is formerly the vice-president of Fujian University of
Traditional Chinese Medicine (in September 2012, retired from the
position as vice president) and currently a tutor to master students
of Chinese Medicines and a tutor of the integration of traditional
and western medicine (first-tier subject) doctor’s degree of the
Fujian University of Traditional Chinese Medicine. Mr. Liang was
recognized by the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC* (FREE A R
FE| AZEEF) as an young and middle-aged expert in outstanding
contribution* (A EF B EHEREXK) in 1989.

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (“Mr. Wong”), aged 48, joined our Group
as an independent non-executive Director on 11 April 2013.
Mr. Wong obtained a Diploma in Accounting from Hong Kong
Shue Yan College in July 1991 and is currently a Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong. He was admitted as an associate
member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountant (now known
as Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) and the
Association of International Accountants in the United Kingdom in
March 2000 and October 1999, respectively. He has over 10 years'
experience in working as chief financial officer, company secretary
and/or director in listed companies in Hong Kong where he was
involved in the finance and company secretarial matters and
has handled a number of corporate finance transactions such as
mergers and acquisitions, capital fund raising activities, corporate
restructuring and corporate transactions. Mr. Wong was a non-
executive director of the Shaanxi Northwest New Technology
Industry Company Limited (stock code: 8258) for the period
from 14 September 2012 to 12 August 2014. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Wong did not hold any directorship in any other public
companies the securities of which are listed on any securities

market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years.

* English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Directors’ and Senior Management's Profiles

ESNSHREBASEHE

Dr. Liu Yongping (“Dr. Liu”), aged 59, is a practicing solicitor
in Hong Kong and a consultant of a firm of solicitors in Hong
Kong. Dr. Liu has more than 20 years of experience in the capital
market and merger and acquisition legal services sector. Dr. Liu
graduated from the University of London with a master’s degree
in law in 1987 and from the University of Oxford with a doctor’s
degree in philosophy in 1994. Apart from his appointment with
the Company, Dr. Liu has been acting as an independent non-
executive director of Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock code: 629), since June
2010. Dr. Liu has also been acting as an independent non-
executive director of China Forestry Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
930), since September 2012. During August 2011 and October
2012, Dr. Liu acted as an independent non-executive director of
JF Household Furnishings Limited, a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 776). Save as disclosed
above, Dr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any other public
companies the securities of which are listed on any securities

market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Xiang Zheng (“Ms. Xiang”), aged 53, is the General
Manager of Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical
Co. Limited* (REZEEB/MTEHFEEXER 23 ) (“Fuzhou
Huihao”). Ms. Xiang was graduated from The Open University of
Fujian* (FEZEEE R X2 ) majoring in Business Administration,
and has more than 20 years of operational management
experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Ms. Xiang joined
our Group in December 2008. Prior to joining our Group,
Ms. Xiang worked in Fujian Sanming Medicine Shareholding
Co., Limited* (BRE=ZHEZERMHBER LA ), a state-owned
pharmaceutical enterprise in Sanming from 1992 to 2008,
where she served as salesperson, manager of pharmaceutical
department, manager of medical devices department and vice
general manager, and was mainly responsible for managing the

sales business.
*  English translations of official Chinese names are for identification

purpose only
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profiles

Mr. Luo Xintian (“Mr. Luo”), aged 48, is the General Manager
of Fujian Huiming Medicine Co. Limited (B2 & BHEELIR
‘A @]) (“Fujian Huiming”). Mr. Luo was graduated from Fujian
Pharmaceutical School Adult Technical College* (1@i2 BB
K A HE) majoring in Chinese Medicine, and has more than 25
years of managerial experience in the sales of pharmaceutical
products. Mr. Luo joined our Group in November 2008, and has
been the general manager of Fujian Huiming since April 2012.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Luo worked in several state-owned
pharmaceutical enterprises in Ninghua County, Jianning County
and Sanming City in Fujian Province since 1987 as salesman,
deputy manager in procurement department, deputy manager in
sales department, assistant to general manager and he was mainly
responsible for the management of the procurement and sales of

pharmaceutical products.

Mr. Chen Bing (“Mr. B. Chen"), aged 44, is the General Manager
of Putian Huihao Medicine Co. Limited* (ER B HEFEES
FR2 ) ("Putian Huihao").
Northwest College for Nationalities* (784t R & 2 Fx) majoring

Mr. B. Chen was graduated from

in Business Enterprise Marketing, and has extensive operational
management experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr.
B. Chen joined our Group in December 2008. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. B. Chen worked in Zhangzhou Biochemistry
Pharmaceutical Group Co. Limited* CEM At EREEE S
PR/A &) as the sales director from 2006 to 2007, responsible for
managing the national sales business in the PRC.

Mr. Xu Jiwang (“Mr. Xu”), aged 41, is the General Manager
of Huihao Medicine (Quanzhou) Co. Limited* (SR#FE %% (R M)
BBR2AF) ("Quanzhou Huihao”). Mr. Xu was graduated from
Southwest Jiaotong University* (78 X # K &) specialising
in Business Administration and has extensive operational
management experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Xu
joined our Group in January 2011. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Xu worked in Fujian Province Pharmaceutical Limited Liability
Company* (B2 BB HEBREE A A) from August 1994 to
November 2010, and served as the sales manager of the company,

responsible for managing the sales of pharmaceutical products.

* English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Directors’ and Senior Management's Profiles

ESNSHREBASEHE

Mr. Liu Xin Jian (“Mr. X. Liu’), aged 51, is the General Manager
of Xiamen Huihao (B# &% (EM)BRAE) Mr. X. Liu was
graduated from Second Military Medical University Shanghai, ( £
B ZE B AKZ) majoring in Pharmacy and has approximately 32
years operational management experience in the pharmaceutical

industry. Mr. X. Liu joined our Group since May 2014.

Mr. Liu Zhao Liang (“Mr. Z. Liu’), aged 41, is the General
Manager of Nanping Huihao (B# &% (M¥)AER A E) Mr.
Z. Liu was graduated from Jilin University ( F # X2 ) majoring
in Economies and has approximately 21 years operational
management experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Z. Liu

joined our Group since September 2014.

Mr. Chen Kaiping (“Mr. K. Chen"), aged 52, is the assistant to
General Manager of Fuzhou Huihao and he is responsible for the
quality control of the company. Mr. K. Chen was graduated from
Fujian Province Pharmaceutical School* ({2 & B2 24 ), and
is a qualified pharmacist. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. K. Chen
worked as manager of the quality control department in FHP
Chain and as deputy director of the quality control department
in FHP Company during the period from September 2003 to April
2008 and he was responsible for supervising the quality control of

pharmaceutical products.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsang Wai Wa (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 54, has been appointed
as the Company Secretary with effect from 30 September
2014. Mr. Tsang is a holder of a Bachelor degree in Finance and
Accounting and a Master degree in Business Administration. He
is a fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He has more than 20 years
of professional experience in auditing, accounting, company

secretary and corporate finance.

*  English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) acknowledges
the need and importance of corporate governance as one of the
key elements in creating shareholders’ value. The Company is also
committed to achieving high standard of corporate governance
that can properly protect and promote the interests of all
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability of

the Company.

The Company strived to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance and complied with the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code") as stated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing Securities on Main Board (the “Listing Rules”) of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the CG Code
as its own code of corporate governance. Save as the deviation
from the code provision A.2.1, separation of roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to code provision A.2.1 as
disclosed in the section “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”.
The board of directors (the “Board”) considers that the Company
was in compliance with all applicable code provisions set out in
the CG Code from 11 October 2013, being the date of listing of

the Company, to the date of this report.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s operation is

vested in the Board.

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters
of the Company, including the formulation and approval of
all policy matters, overall strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitoring of the performance
of the senior management. The directors of the Company
("Directors”) make decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company. Currently, the Board comprises five Directors,
including two executive directors and three independent

non-executive directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Weng Jiaxing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 21 November 2014)

Mr. Chen Yong (Vice Chairman)
(resigned on 10 October 2014)

Yung Ka Chun (appointed on 10 October 2014 and resigned
on 20 April 2015)

Chen Jinshan (appointed on 10 October 2014)

Shum Ngai Pan (appointed on 20 April 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Liang Yichi

Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

Their biographical details and relationships among the
board members, if any are set out in the section entitled
“Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile” in the annual

report.
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The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations, business strategies
and management of the Group’s businesses to the
executive Directors, senior management and certain specific

responsibilities to the Board committees.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Weng
Jiaxing was the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. After Mr. Weng lJiaxing resigned from the
Company, there is no position of the chairman and chief

executive officer up to the date of the report.

The Company will, from time to time, review the
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance
structure and consider whether any changes, including
the establishment of the roles of the chairman and chief

executive officer.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a service contract or
letter of appointment with the Company for a specific term.
Such term is subject to his or her re-appointment by the
Company at an annual general meeting upon such Director’s

retirement and offering himself for re-election.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third
of the Directors who have been longest in office since their
last election or re-election are also subject to retirement by
rotation at the annual general meeting. All retiring directors

are eligible for re-election.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, one of whom namely Mr. Wong Hon Kit possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications in accounting and
financial management. Each of the three independent non-
executive Directors has confirmed his independence of the
Company and the Company considers each of them to be
independent in accordance with the guidelines of assessing
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Each of the three independent non-executive Directors has
signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a

specific term of three years.

Training and Support for Directors
The Company encourages the Directors to participate in
professional development courses and seminars to develop

and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Effective from 11 October 2013, the date of listing of the
Company, up to the date of this report, regulatory updates
and relevant materials on amendments of the Listing Rules
have been sent to the Directors for their awareness of the
latest development on regulatory requirements. Training

records of each Director will also be kept.

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance
CG Code provision A.1.1 prescribes that at least four regular
Board meetings should be held each year at approximately
quarterly intervals with active participation of a majority of
the Directors, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board has held
6 meetings. All executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors attended the meeting. The Board will

schedule to have at least four regular meetings in a year.
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Attendance record of each director at the meetings of
the Board together with the meetings of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination and Corporate Governance

Committee during the year ended 31 March 2015 are set

Corporate Governance Report
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Governance Committee meeting were held prior to his
resignation on 21 November 2014

2 Board meetings and no Remuneration Committee meeting

were held prior to his resignation on 10 October 2014

& 3 Board meetings and 1 Remuneration Committee meeting
were held after his appointment on 10 October 2014

3 Board meetings were held after his appointment on 10
October 2014

out below.
Attendance/Number of Meetings
HERY, ERRY
Nomination
and Corporate
Audit Remuneration Governance
Board Committee Committee Committee
RER
Name of directors ESE Ese TUEAN FHEAE OLREAZAN
Executive directors BITEE
Mr. Weng Jiaxing SMELE

(Chairman and (FERTHEZ)

Chief Executive Officer)* 4/6 N/AT I8 N/ATiE A n
Mr. Chen Yong WEXE (F/£E)"

(Vice Chairman)’ 2/6 N/ATiE A 01 N/ATiE A
Mr. Yung Ka Chun® FEELLEC 3/6 N/ATE 171 N/ATE
Mr. Chen Jin Shan" [CRATY 3/6 N/AT3E A N/ATIE A N/AT 18 A
Independent non-executive BIFHITES

directors
Mr. Liang Yichi R—tE4E 6/6 212 N/ATE B 11
Mr. Wong Hon Kit HEREE 6/6 212 11 11
Dr. Liu Yongping AETHL 6/6 212 / 11
+ 4 Board meetings and 1 Nomination and Corporate G RER—FE—MEFE+—F=1—HET
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Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance
The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the Directors to cover their liabilities arising out of

corporate activities.

Compliance with the Mode Code for Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) since
11 October 2013, being the date of listing of the Company,
up to the date of this report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its model
code for securities transactions by Directors. Having made
specific inquiries, all the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code from 11 October 2013, being
the date of listing of the Company, up to the date of this

report.

Board Committees

The Board has established an Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee (collectively “Board Committees”)
with defined terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Board Committees are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board
Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 24 September
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.2.1 of the Listing Rules and a copy of which is posted
on the website of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The

Audit Committee’s current members include:

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)
Mr. Liang Yichi
Dr. Liu Yongping

All of the committee members are independent non-
executive Directors. The primary duties of the Audit

Committee include, but are not limited to:

(@) to review and monitor the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable

standard;

(b) monitoring integrity of financial statements of
the Company and the Company’s annual report
and accounts, half-year report and if prepared for

publication, quarterly reports;

(c) reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal

control and risk management systems;

(d) reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the
code provisions as stated in Appendix 14 to the Listing

Rules.

The Audit Committee shall hold at least two regular
meetings in a year to review and discuss the interim and
annual financial statements of the Company. Additional
meetings of the Audit Committee may be held as and when

required.

The Audit Committee shall meet with the external auditor
at least twice a year. The external auditor may request a

meeting if they consider necessary.
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During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Audit Committee
held two meetings. The attendance records are set under
the section headed “Number of Meetings and Directors’

Attendance” in this report.

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be nominated for
appointment as the auditors of the Company at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 24
September 2013 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rule and a copy
of which is posted on the website of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. The Remuneration Committee’s current

members include:

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Yong (resigned on 10 October 2014)

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Yung Ka Chun (appointed on 10 October 2014
and resigned on 20 April 2015)

Ms. Shum Ngai Pan (appointed on 20 April 2015)

The majority of the members are independent non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee
reviews the remuneration package of the executive
Directors, independent non-executive Directors and senior
management, and makes appropriate recommendations
to the Board. Staff remuneration is determined by the
Group’s management by reference to the individual staff’s
qualifications, work experience, performance and prevailing

market conditions.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

BE-_Z-AF=RA=t—HLFE &
REEECEITMAEE - HELEHR
ABEEBREARESHER| —H-

AEEZRESHEESHMERME
RAFEZ HEHERIEETZRE
BEARELER BEREESRRESE
REBBESFHMEHEMERQANEE
BOZRRBEARSELEZEREAALF
B o

FHER®

FHEEECER-E-—Z=ZFhA=+N
ARy WEBHE LHRAE3. 252
EHREEHE HEARAQ T RERHR
HuEHE -FHEESS 2 RANERE:

EERBLE (FE)
RELELE (R-F-NF+ A+ HEHE)
EFEL

SEEBRLE(R=ZE-—OE+A+HE

ZERR=ZZE-AFTHA =+ HEE)
MBBLZT (R—E—HEWMBE=-+AH
BEZE)

REZHUZERBIUFPITES -FWES
SEHNYVITES BIUFPITESRER
EEAECHMER YAESSHFHE
ERR - BEIHFMRASECERESE
BRET &M% THELHE KRRERRT
mREEE -



The Remuneration Committee shall meet once during
the financial year. During the meeting, the Remuneration
Committee will review the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors, independent non-executive Directors and

senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the
year ended 31 March 2015.

Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee
was established in 24 September 2013 with written terms
of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.1 and D.3.1
of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rule and a copy of which
is posted on the website of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The Nomination and Corporate Governance

Committee’s current members include:

Mr. Weng Jiaxing (Chairman)
(resigned on 21 November 2014)

Mr. Liang Yichi

Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

The majority of the members are independent non-executive
Directors. The primary duties of the nomination and
corporate governance committee include, but are not limited

to:

(@) reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board on a regular basis and making recommendations

to the Board regarding any proposed changes;
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identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of,

individuals nominated for directorship;

making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors in
particular the chairman of the Board and the chief

executive officer of the Company; and

keeping the effectiveness of the corporate governance

and system of internal controls of the Group.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee shall

meet once during the financial year. During the meeting,

the Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee will

review the structure and composition (including the skills,

knowledge and experience) of the Board.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee held

one meeting during the year ended 31 March 2015.
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Conflict of Interest

If a Director has a conflict of interest in relation to a
transaction or proposal to be considered by the Board, the
individual is required to declare such interest and to abstain
from voting. The matter is considered at a Board meeting
attended by Directors who have no material interest in the

transaction.

The Group also adopted certain internal control policies to

manage potential conflicts of interest.

Company Secretary

Mr. Tsang Wai Wa (“Mr. Tsang”), the company secretary
of the Company, is a full time employee of the Group and
has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Mr.
Tsang duly complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The
biographical details of the company secretary is set out in
the section entitled “Directors and Senior Management

Profile” in the annual report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the financial controller and the
finance and accounts department of the Company are
responsible for the preparation of accounts for each financial
period which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. In preparing the accounts for the year
ended 31 March 2015, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, adopted
appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards, made adjustments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and have
prepared the accounts on a going concern basis. The
Directors are also responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which reflect the financial information of the Group

with reasonable accuracy.
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External Auditor’'s Remuneration

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has been appointed
as the Company’s external auditor since the Company's
incorporation. The Audit Committee has been notified of
the nature and the service charges of non-audit services
performed by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited and
considered that these non-audit services have no adverse
effect on the independence of the auditor. There was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of

the external auditor.

The remuneration paid to the Company's external auditor,
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 March

2015 is set out below:

Nature of services RFEHE

b 5 43 B B 37 B

HESTMEBAARIFADEA DA
AR R R ERA DR Z SN B o
BEREESCEREHBEAS BB
BERARETHELRE 2 MERRE
B UIRRZEHRELRBELBN 2B
VM EIFNEE ESSREREES
EEE ZE BERIABRIBZEEGS
I ESR DB

BE-_Z—HF=A=1+—HILEFE &
EVRBRFECREMEMAFEAAA
MEREMBEEEHAMELAERDA
ZEHMBERSIMT

Amount (HK$'000)
W (T#ERT)

Audit services EIZRTE

Internal Control

The Board has the responsibility to maintain an effective
internal control system in order to safeguard the Group's
assets and shareholders’ interests, and review and
monitor the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems on a regular basis to ensure that the

systems in place are adequate.
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During the year under review, the Company engaged
external independent consultants to conduct a review of the
internal control system of the Group in order to maintain
high standards of corporate governance. The Board has also
itself conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group and is of the view that the
Company has taken all reasonable steps to establish a proper

internal control system.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Group also recognises
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enable shareholders and

investors to make appropriate investment decisions.

The members of the Board, Board Committees and the
external auditor are present to answer shareholders’
questions in the annual general meeting of the Company.
Meeting circulars are distributed to all shareholders before
the annual general meeting and special general meetings in
accordance with the timeline requirement as laid down in
the Listing Rules and the bye-laws of the Company. All the
resolutions proposed to be approved at the general meetings
will be taken by poll and poll voting results will be published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company

after the meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the
Group maintains a website where information on the
Company’s announcements, financial information and
other information are posted. Shareholders and investors
may write directly to the Company at its principal place of

business in Hong Kong with any inquiries.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the
Company, such as telephone number, fax number, email
address and postal address, in order to enable them to make
any query that they may have with respect to the Company.
They can also send their enquiries to the Board through
these means. In addition, shareholders can contact the share
registrar of the Company, if they have any enquires about

their shareholdings.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and

the Company after each shareholder meeting.

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings, and the
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition,
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the

deposit of such requisition.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents since incorporation on 9 July 2012 and up to 31
March 2015.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of Wanjia Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) has pleasure in presenting to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) its report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2015.

DATE OF INCORPORATION
The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 9 July

2012 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
by way of introduction on 11 October 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company while its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in pharmaceutical wholesales
and distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain business in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 26 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at 31 March
2015 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages
63 to 199 of this report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2015.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last three financial years, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 200
of this report. The summary does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group did not invest in any investment property during the
year. Details of the movements in investment properties of the
Group during the year are set out in note 22 to the consolidated

financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment at cost of
approximately HK$5.263 million during the year. Details of the
movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company's share capital during
the year are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity on page 69 respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-

rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there were no purchase,
sale or redemption of the Company's listed securities by the

Company or any of its subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The Group's largest customer accounted for approximately 2.75%
of the Group's turnover and the Group’s five largest customers in

aggregate accounted for approximately 9.52%.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the aggregate amount
of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
represented approximately 5.27% of the Group's total value
of purchases. The Group's largest supplier accounted for

approximately 21.24% of the Group's total value of purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders, which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in the share

capital of the five largest customers and suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the year

and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Weng Jiaxing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 21 November 2014)

Mr. Chen Yong (Vice Chairman) (resigned on 10 October 2014)

Yung Ka Chun (appointed on 10 October 2014
and resigned on 20 April 2015)

Chen Jinshan (appointed on 10 October 2014)

Shum Ngai Pan (appointed on 20 April 2015)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Liang Yichi

Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping
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In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Chen Jinshan and Ms. Shum Ngai Pan, the
executive directors of the Company, will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Wong Hon Kit and Mr. Liu Yongping, the
independent non-executive directors of the Company, will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forth

coming annual general meeting.
All other Directors will continue in office.

The biographical details of the directors and senior management
are set on pages 19 to 24 of this annual report. Details of the
emoluments of the directors and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in Notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the

independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Weng Jiaxing, the executive Director of the Company and
chairman of the Board has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing on 4
September 2012 which will continue thereafter until terminated
by either party giving to the other party not less than 3 month's
notice in writing. Mr. Weng has tendered his resignation as an

executive director with effect from 21 November 2014.

Mr. Chen Yong has been appointed as an executive Director of the
Company by way of a letter of appointment with the Company for
a terms of 3 year commencing from 4 September 2012 which will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the
other party not less than 3 month’s notice in writing. Mr. Chen
has tendered his resignation as an executive director with effect
from 10 October 2014.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

READRD2EABERAAESIQ)FK A0 T
HITESRES U AERNBIB L T ERERER
REAFASLHRESR EFERLERE
BEE-

REBEADBD2ASERAAEAMR A 2AH
MFHTESEEATEREETELERE
ERRBFAS LWESE HEFSERLE
EEREME-

FREHMESKEBETH-

EENSNEBAEBREHBENENERSE9
BUBE - BEERARBEeTFMA L ZBEHE
DRIER G E T ERRME 14515«

RRREEBRBEIFATESRIRBELTR
B3 1I3RIFH e BUMBRAR - AR ARR
FREBYFHITESRBEL -

EFER¥BEH
AAANTESRESEIRAMALECH
AARATYEER B-F-—FhANBE
FREEF WEREAHE EEEA-F
A% - FRETIR=MEAZEABALLS
k- REECREBAVTES B2 -1
Ft-A=t+-BREX-

REBALEECEAQNAUEREZEAAAT
PITEE BT —FAAMEAEFAB=
FUBREREFT BEEEA-FRAR—FA
BEAOR=ZEA2EEBEALIEBIE-FRE
SEREFEHTES BT —NE+AT
BiEM-



Mr. Yung Ka Chun, has been appointed as an executive Director
of the Company by way of a letter of appointment with the
Company commencing on 10 October 2014 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other
party at least 1 month’s notice in writing. Mr. Yung has tendered
his resignation as an executive director with effect from 20 April
2015.

Mr. Chen Jinshan, has been appointed as an executive Director
of the Company by way of a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of 1 year commencing on 10 October 2014
which will continue thereafter until terminated by either party

giving to the other party at least 1 month’s notice in writing.

Ms. Shum Ngai Pan has been appointed as an executive Director
of the Company by way of a service contract with the Company
for a term of 1 year commencing on 20 April 2015 which will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the

other party at least 1 month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Liang Yichi has been appointed as independent non-executive
Directors of the Company by way of letters of appointment
with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing from 4
September 2012 which will continue thereafter until either
the independent non-executive Director or the Company may
terminate the agreement by giving the other party not less than 3

months’ notice in writing.

Mr. Wong Hon Kit has been appointed as independent non-
executive Directors of the Company by way of letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing
from 11 April 2013 which will continue thereafter until either
the independent non-executive Director or the Company may
terminate the agreement by giving the other party not less than 3

months’ notice in writing.
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Dr. Liu Yongping has been appointed as independent non-
executive Directors of the Company by way of letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing
from 27 February 2014 which will continue thereafter until either
the independent non-executive Director or the Company may
terminate the agreement by giving the other party not less than 3

months’ notice in writing.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the heading “Continuing connected
transactions”, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY
The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on merit,

qualifications and competence of employees.

The remuneration policies of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the Group's operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

(a) Directors’ interests and short positions in the
securities of the Company and its associated
corporations
As at 31 March 2015, none of the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company has the interests or
short positions in the shares of the Company (“Shares”),
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong, the “SFO")) which will have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein or which will be required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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(b) Substantial shareholders’ interest and short

positions in shares and underlying shares.

As at 31 March 2015, other than the interests of a director
or chief executive of the Company as disclosed under the
heading “Directors’ and chief executive’s interest in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations” above, the following persons
(not being a Director or the chief executive officer of the
Company) have an interest or a short position in Shares or
underlying Shares which would be required to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or will
be, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other

member of the Group:

(i) Long position in shares of the Company

(b) EERFERERMREARKRMZERR

KE

RZE-HF=ZA=+—-H KBRLEX[E
ERFETHRAERET AR REBEE
BziRe - HERDREEE 2ER | —
HREERAAREESRFTETHAEZ
BN UTAL (RATZEBRITH
BEBRIN) RAD T RDRABBERAD
EREBEFFRAERGIEXVIBE2R %3
DR BERARA B REERZMIRE X
BEEIEEZEEGRTRAINEMTERT
RAEEZEMEMKE DN ZRERKX
ELEREZEMERIRAZ10%R U L
EEZERZHIRE:

(i) FLXFRMBZHE

Approximate

percentage of

Number the total

Name of shareholder Capacity Position of shares issued shares

HERTRM

HEZEN

BREE HaE 47 B Bin& B B

Hua Xia (Note 1) Interested in controlled Long 411,917,648 63.53%
corporation

=5 (ME1) REZFEENES #e 411,917,648 63.53%

Greatly Wealth (Note 1) Beneficial owner Long 411,917,648 63.53%

RE (MFEET) BERBEEA He 411,917,648 63.53%

Mr. Yung Kwok Leong Interested in controlled Long 24,192,100 3.73%
(Note 2) corporation

SEZEE (KEE2) REZFEENES e 24,192,100 3.73%

Beneficial owner Long 47,009,375 7.25%

BEREBA #a 47,009,375 7.25%
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Approximate

percentage of

Number the total

Name of shareholder Capacity Position of shares issued shares

HEBTEREG
HEcEH
(13 £-197%8 T4 53 h-g s Eir®E B
Marshal International Interested in controlled Long 24,192,100 3.73%
Investments Limited corporation
(Note 2)
BHBEMREERAT REEHEENER Hr 24,192,100 3.73%
(Fg&E2)
Easeglory Holdings Beneficial owner Long 24,192,100 3.73%
Limited (Note 2)
ZRERBRDF BEREAA i) 24,192,100 3.73%
(Fg&E2)
Mrs. Yung Muk Ying Interest of spouse Long 71,201,475 10.98%
(Note 3)

HARELZ L (KFEE3) BB Ha 71,201,475 10.98%

Notes: B &

1. Greatly Wealth is a company incorporated in the BVI 1. RKRBEARKBEZBEBETMAK
with limited liability which is wholly and beneficially YZERLAR BHEER2EER
owned by Hua Xia. By virtue of the SFO, Hua Xia is RET - REFSFRBERA
deemed to be interested in the entire 411,917,648 EERRARKRBETEFTZE2H
shares held by the Greatly Wealth. 411,917,648 R HIEE R ©

2. Easeglory Holdings Limited (“Easeglory”) is a company 2. SRERERAE ([HE) AR

incorporation in the BVI with limited liabilities which is
wholly and beneficially owned by Marshal International
Investments Limited (“Marshal”), a company
incorporated in the BVI with limited liability and is
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yung Kwok Leong
("Mr. Yung”). By virtue of the SFO, both Marshal and
Mr. Yung are deemed to be interested in the entire
24,192,100 shares held by Easeglory.

KERZESTMRIZBERA
A HREBELEETMRILZ
ERADBHEMRBERRAA
(lER)2EEREE BFH
fFEREE ((REREE])ZE
BREE RIEEFRBEMRM
BERRSESAEHERAENRS
BEFE M2 E24,192,1008% & 17
hEERER-
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3. Mrs. Yung Muk Ying, the spouse of Mr. Yung, is
deemed to be interested in 71,201,475 shares held
by Mr. Yung in person or through his controlled
corporations under the SFO.

(ii) Long position in shares of the associated

corporation

3. SAHLTBEESEECER
B REFFZRIERMNBREAR
AEEBARERESEGEE
FriEA 271,201,475 IR 19
B

(i) REBEZEERMHZFE

Approximate

percentage of

shareholding in

Number of  the associated
shares in corporation’s

Name of associated ~ Name of the associated issued
corporation registered owner Capacity Position corporation share capital
REkEE
BERTRFH
RmEE ]2
HEEERE BRRAARE E 40 Bt FrislR BB #naak
Greatly Wealth Hua Xia Beneficial owner Long 200 shares 100%
of US$1 each
RE = BERERA H#a 200R R 100%
HE1ERT
AR 7

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, the
directors of the Company were not aware of any other
person (other than the directors and chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SECURITIES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executive's interests in shares, underlying shared and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations” above, at no
time since incorporation of the Company were right to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or of any other body corporate granted to any
directors or their respective spouses or children under 18 years
of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors, their respective spouse
or children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in any

other body corporate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Certain connected transactions which are significant are also
disclosed as related party transactions (see note 41 to the

consolidated financial statements).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 24 September 2013, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Board can
grant options for the subscription of our shares to the employees,
managerial staff and senior employees and those other persons
that the Board considers that they will contribute or have
contributed to the Group (the “Participants”) as described in
the Share Option Scheme in order to serve as compliment and
to reciprocate their contribution to the Group. The maximum
number of shares that can be issued according to the Share
Option Scheme was 64,840,530 shares, which is equivalent to
10% of the issued capital of the Company after completion of the
Listing on the Stock Exchange. The number of options that may
be granted pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares immediately after
the completion of the Listing. Unless otherwise approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting, the number of
shares that may be granted to a Participant under the options shall
not exceed 1% within any 12-month period (other than those
granted to the substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company or the independent non-executive Directors
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules)), or the total number of shares that may be granted under
the options to the substantial shareholders of the Company or
the independent non-executive Directors or any of their respective
associates shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue of the
Company from time to time. There is no minimum period that the
options must be held before they become exercisable, and the
options granted shall be exercised within the period decided by
the Board; however no options shall be exercised 10 years after
they have been granted. The exercise price of the option shall
be the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares on the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b)
the average closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) nominal value of the share.
Each grantee shall pay a consideration of HK$1.00 at the time the
option is granted. The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from
the date it is adopted and shall remain effective within a period of
10 years from that date.
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Since the Share Option Scheme was adopted, no options have

been granted up to the date of this report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had entered into a number of transactions with
connected parties which, upon the listing of the Shares on the
Stock Exchange, became connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. These transactions are continuing
connected transactions exempt from the independent
shareholder’s approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions are as follows:

Rental agreement with Fujian Huihao Pharmaceutical
Chain Company Limited (“FHP Chain")

Tenancy Agreement 1

On 10 September 2012, Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao
Pharmaceutical Co. Limited (“Fuzhou Huihao”), an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and FHP Chain entered
a new tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement 1”) for the
rental of (i) Level 1 and Level 4 of the office building located at
No. 8 Huihao Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian Province,
the PRC (the “Property 1”) with a gross floor area ("GFA")
approximately 1,336 square meter (“sq.m.”); and (ii) Levels 1
to 3 of the warehouse building located at No. 8 Huihao Road,
Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian, the PRC (the “Property 2")
with a GFA of approximately 9,957 sq.m.. The term of the lease
is from 10 September 2012 to 31 March 2015 with a rental of
RMB10,688 per month for the Property 1 and RMB49,785 per
month for the Property 2 and is renewable upon the signing of a

new rental agreement.
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On 4 December 2014, Fujian Hihao and FHP Chain entered a new
tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement 1) for the rental of (i)
Level 1 and Level 4 of the office building located at No. 8 Huihao
Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian Province, the PRC (the
“Property 1”) with a gross floor area (“GFA") approximately
1,268 square meter (“sq.m.”); and (ii) Levels 1 to 3 of the
warehouse building located at No. 8 Huihao Road, Shangjie Town,
Minhou Xian, Fujian, the PRC (the “Property 2") with a GFA of
approximately 9,852 sq.m.. The term of the lease is from 1 April
2015 to 31 March 2018 with a rental of RMB10,144 per month
for the Property 1 and RMB49,260 per month for the Property 2

and is renewable upon the signing of a new rental agreement.

Tenancy Agreement 2

Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited
(“Huihao Sihai”) a subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
tenancy agreement on 28 December 2009 for a terms of five years
with an aggregate rental fee of RMB64,188 per quarter from 1
January 2010 to 31 December 2014 with FHP Chain for Property 3
and Property 4 form part, which is used as office and warehouse
of Huihao Sihai. As disclosed in the announcement of Hua Xia
dated 10 September 2012, new tenancy agreement is entered
into and terminated all the above previous tenancy agreements
between Huihao Sihai and FHP Chain.

On 10 September 2012, Huihao Sihai and FHP Chain entered
a new tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement 2") for the
rental of (i) Level 3 of the office building located at No.8 Huihao
Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian Province, the PRC
(the “Property 3") with a GFA of approximately 600 sq.m.; and
(ii) Level 4 of the warehouse building located on No.8 Huihao
Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian Province, the PRC (the
“Property 4") with a GFA of approximately 3,319 sq.m.. The term
of the lease is from 10 September 2012 to 31 March 2015 with a
rental of RMB4,800 per month for the Property 3 and RMB16,595
per month for the Property 4 and is renewable upon the signing

of the new rental agreement.
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On 4 December 2014, Huihao Sihai and FHP Chain entered a
new tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement 2”) for the
rental of (i) Level 3 of the office building located at No.8 Huihao
Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian Province, the PRC
(the “Property 3") with a GFA of approximately 600 sq.m.; and
(ii) Level 4 of the warehouse building located on No.8 Huihao
Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian Province, the PRC (the
"Property 4”) with a GFA of approximately 3,284 sq.m.. The term
of the lease is from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2018 with a rental
of RMB4,800 per month for the Property 3 and RMB16,420 per
month for the Property 4 and is renewable upon the signing of

the new rental agreement.

FHP Chain Company was held as to 50% of its issued share capital
by Mr. Weng Jiale, who is a brother of Mr. Weng Jiaxing (“Mr.
Weng"), an former executive Director of the Group and a nephew
of Mr. Yung, a substantial shareholder of Hua Xia. Therefore, FHP
Chain is an associate of Mr. Weng and Mr. Yung, and is therefore
a connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.11(4) of the

Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the annual cap, also the
total rental charge paid, for the Group's total transaction amount
with FHP Chain contemplated under the Tenancy Agreement 1
is RMB725,676 (equivalent to approximately HK$913,989) and
Tenancy Agreement 2 is RMB256,740 (equivalent to approximately
HK$323,364).
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Rental agreements entered with Yung Muk Ying (the spouse
of Yung Kwok Leong) (“Ms. Yung”)

Tenancy Agreement 3

On 31 May 2013, Putian Huihao Medicine Co. Limited* ({8 % H
HiFBEESR AT ) ("Putian Huihao”), a indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement
(“Tenancy Agreement 3") with Ms. Yung which for rental of
(i) Level 1 of which is located at No. 1466, 1470, 1476 Xiadian
Road, GongChen Street, Licheng District, Putian City, Fujian
Province, China (“Property 5”) with a GFA of approximately
253.96 sq.m.; and (ii) Level 2 of which is located at No. 1466,
1470, 1476 Xiadian Road, GongChen Street, Licheng District,
Putian City, Fujian Province, China (“Property 6") with a GFA of
approximately 264.75 sg.m.. The term of the lease is from 31 May
2013 to 31 March 2015 with a rental of RMB5,079.2 per month
for Property 5 and RMB2,647.5 per month for Property 6 and is

renewable upon the signing of the new rental agreement.

On 4 December 2014, Putian Huihao Medicine Co. Limited* (&
EEHEFEZEAERRDA) ("Putian Huihao”),

wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy

an indirect

agreement (“Tenancy Agreement 3”) with Ms. Yung which
for rental of (i) Level 1 of which is located at No. 1466, 1470,
1476 Xiadian Road, GongChen Street, Licheng District, Putian
City, Fujian Province, China ("Property 5”) with a GFA of
approximately 169.81 sq.m.; and (ii) Level 2 of which is located at
No. 1466, 1470, 1476 Xiadian Road, GongChen Street, Licheng
District, Putian City, Fujian Province, China (“Property 6") with a
GFA of approximately 192.86 sq.m.. The term of the lease is from
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2018 with a rental of RMB3,396.2 per
month for Property 5 and RMB1,928.6 per month for Property 6

and is renewable upon the signing of the new rental agreement.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the annual cap, also the
total rental charge paid, for the Group's total transaction amount
with Ms. Yung contemplated under the Tenancy agreement 3 is
RMB92,720 (equivalent to approximately HK$116,753).
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Purchase agreement with a connected person

Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited (“Huihao Hong Kong"), an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a purchase agreement on 26 April 2012 for a term of three
years ending 31 March 2015 with Fujian Huihao Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“FHP Company”). Upon reviewing the
latest trading pattern and the actual purchase amount of the
pharmaceutical products, Huihao Hong Kong and FHP Company
entered into a new purchase agreement (the “Purchase
Agreement”) on 19 September 2013 which superseded the
remaining term of the previous purchase agreement. Pursuant to
the Purchase Agreement, Huihao Hong Kong Group have agreed
to purchase certain pharmaceutical products from FHP Company

for a term of two years ending 31 March 2015.

FHP Company was held as to 55% of its issued share capital
by Mr. Weng Jiale, who is a brother of Mr. Weng, an executive
Director of the Group and a nephew of Mr. Yung, a substantial
shareholder and an executive director of Hua Xia. Therefore,
FHP company is an associate of Mr. Weng and Mr. Yung, and
is therefore a connected person of the Company under Rule
14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the Group's total transaction amount with FHP
Company contemplated under the agreement is HK$2.03 million
(2014: HK$1.93 million) for the year ending 31 March 2015.
During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group total actual
purchase transaction amount approximately HK$1.665 million

(equivalent to approximately RMB1.323 million).
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Sales agreements with connected persons

()

(i)

Sales agreement with FHP Company

Huihao Hong Kong entered into a sales agreement on 26
April 2012 for a term of three years ending 31 March 2015
with Fujian Huihao Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“FHP
Company”). Upon reviewing the latest trading pattern and
the actual purchase amount of the pharmaceutical products,
Huihao Hong Kong and FHP Company entered into a new
sales agreement (the “FHP Sales Agreement”) on 19
September 2013 which superseded the remaining term of
the previous sales agreement. Pursuant to the FHP Sales
Agreement, Huihao Hong Kong Group has agreed to sell and
deliver certain pharmaceutical products from FHP Company

for a term of two years ending 31 March 2015.

The annual cap for the Group's total transaction amount
with FHP Company contemplated under the agreement is
HK$2.92 million (2014: HK$2.32 million) for the year ending
31 March 2015. During the year ended 31 March 2015, the
Group total actual sales transaction amount approximately
HK$0.178 million (equivalent to approximately RMBO0.141

million).

Sales agreement with Ally Health International
Limited (“Ally Health")

Huihao Hong Kong entered into a sales agreement (the
“Hospital Sales Agreement”) on 17 September 2012 for a
term of three years ending 31 March 2015 with Ally Health.
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Ally Health, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hua Xia, which is
a Controlling Shareholder of the Company that is interested
in approximately 63.5% of the equity of the Company.
Ally Health is also the holding company of Edward Hospital
Company Limited (“Edward Hospital”) and Jiaxing City
Shuguang Western and Chinese Composite Hospital
Company Limited (“Jiaxing Shuguang Hospital”). Both
Edward Hospital and Jiaxing Shuguang Hospital are the
subsidiary of Hua Xia, which is a Controlling Shareholder
of the Company, had an indirect equity interest of 55% in
Edward Hospital and Jiaxing Shuguang Hospital. Ally Health,
Edward Hospital and Jiaxing Shuguang are an associate
of Hua Xia and are therefore a connected person of the

Company under Rule 14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the Group's total transaction amount
with Ally Health contemplated under the agreement is
HK$10 million for the year ending 31 March 2015. During
the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group total actual
sales transaction amount approximately HK$1.317 million

(equivalent to approximately RMB1.046 million).

Details of these continuing connected transactions are
contained in the Prospectus of the Company dated 30
September 2013. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules in so far as they are applicable.
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company,
Mr. Liang Yichi, Mr. Wong Hon Kit and Dr. Liu Yongping
have, for the purpose of Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules,
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that such continuing connected transactions, for

the reporting period, have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the

Group;

(i)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favorable to the Group than terms available to or from

(as appropriate) independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions and on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders of

the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Review
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Company’s auditors have issue their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company as applied the code provisions set out in the
CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Since
its listing on the Stock Exchange, the Company has complied
with the code provisions of the CG Code for the year ended 31
March 2015, save for the exceptions explained in the Corporate

Governance Report in this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on publicly available
information and the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has sufficient public float as required under Rule 8.08 of

the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period

are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2015 were audited by HLB Hodgson Imply Cheng Limited
who will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and

being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

Chen Jinshan

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 June 2015
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H5 ot OEHE AR A G The Landmark IR
HLB e e (e ) e 11 Pedder Street SITH1195%
Central B i E %
Hong Kong HETITRE3E
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED HEESEZERERATZERR

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wanjia
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 63
to 199, which comprise the consolidated and the Company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2015, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2015 and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: P05029
Hong Kong, 29 June 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mOBRANHEMMEBEBNEA

For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

2015 2014
Lk 2 —E-mF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B =F THET FET
Turnover BEH 9 1,567,687 2,096,455
Cost of sales 5 & A AR (1,407,842) [ (1,906,991)
Gross profit EX ] 159,845 189,464
Other revenue Hibw = 10 6,379 7,543
Other (loss)/gain, net Hith (B518) s B4 11 (122) 746
Impairment loss on goodwill BEHEESE 23 (785,169) -
Selling and distribution expenses SHER DX (90,590) (70,524)
Administrative expenses THBEX (46,854) (47,033)
(Loss)/profit from operations BEEE (R B# 12 (756,511) 80,196
Finance costs Bt & & A 13 (8,819) (6,015)
(Loss)/profit before taxation friRel (5538) BH (765,330) 74,181
Taxation wE 16 (7,950) (25,113)
(Loss)/profit for the year TEE (ER) &7 (773,280) 49,068
Other comprehensive income TEEHMZEKRA
for the year
Items that may be reclassified AIRBEEZEEFHEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BamZEE
Exchange differences on translating of REBIMNEEEK ZER EZ5E
foreign operations 1,423 4,475
Total comprehensive (loss)/income ZFEE2@E (FHE),
for the year A # (771,857) 53,543
BESERERARAR
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

= /A
in 8 18

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ==

mMHEHMEBDRS

—AF=RA=1t—-RLFE

2015 2014
—ZE—1F —E—F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M =E THET & T
(Loss)/profit for the year EEEE (BR) 8F:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RKRAREB A (772,949) 48,920
Non-controlling interests FERER (331) 148
(773,280) 49,068
Total comprehensive (loss)/income ME{EXEER® (HE)
for the year attributable to: WA
Owners of the Company KATEE A (771,526) 53,387
Non-controlling interests R ER (331) 156
(771,857) 53,543
(Loss)/earnings per share ELNFEEAEESE
attributable to owners of (5| B7H:
the Company:
— Basic (HK cents per share) —ER (ZREAW) 19 (119.21) 7.54
— Diluted (HK cents per share) — 858 (ZREA) 19 (119.21) 7.54
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these B EAZEFREMBERRZ—BD -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RO IAR R

As at 31 March 2015 R=Z2—HF=HA=1+—H

2015 2014
—ZE—-1F —E-NF
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
M =E THET FH&T
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- -BRERZE 20 22,522 12,569
Prepaid lease payments FE{NHEEMRE 21 4,342 4,509
Investment properties BREWE 22 8,093 8,306
Goodwill [EES 23 2,213 785,521
37,170 810,905
Current assets mEEE
Inventories 7E 24 124,849 128,541
Trade and other ESRHEMEK
receivables and deposits FERZEES 25 428,686 427,984
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries J‘EHQW?MTJE"\:J*'" 28 8,621 2,956
Amount due from the immediate W EZEZER A AR
holding company 29 15 5
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEEERE
through profit or loss EECSREE 30 - 1,259
Pledged bank deposits EIRAEITER 31 12,970 17,431
Cash and cash equivalents HeRhBREEEEE 31 43,029 43,638
618,170 621,814
Current liabilities mHAE
Trade and other payables B REMENRIE 32 242,117 283,080
Amount due to the ultimate FE R ARER QB FIE
holding company 33 4,515 4,008
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries R REZAKE QS FRIE 34 - 1,032
Amounts due to non-controlling EBA—REHEARZ
shareholders of a subsidiary IR BRI 34 - 134
Bank borrowings RITEE 35 121,454 88,088
Tax payables FE 15 % 18 4,210 10,654
372,296 386,996
Net current assets mENEERE 245,874 234,818
Total assets less current liabilities SEHERTDAR 283,044 1,045,723
) REEERRERLT 65
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
OUMBIANIRR

As at 31 March 2015 R=Z—HF=HA=+—H

2015 2014
—B—-1¥F —E-MmEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5 FTHET TET
Capital and reserves BEER R

Share capital &N 37 6,484 6,484
Reserves (E] 38 267,297 1,038,823

Equity attributable to owners of ANAEE ARG ER
the Company 273,781 1,045,307
Non-controlling interests FEERER 9,263 416
Total equity HaWE 283,044 1,045,723

The consolidated financial statements were approved and BEUERERNR-_BE—HEA~NAZT+HILBEHE
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2015 EEMERERRETIR YHTIESRKE

and signed on its behalf by: E:
Mr. Chen Jinshan Ms. Shum Ngai Pan REkE b7 537 g
Executive Director Executive Director HITESE HITESE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BT AZEFREMBERRZ—BD-

consolidated financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
B #5 1A 3% |

As at 31 March 2015 R=Z2—HF=HA=1+—H

2015 2014
—ZE—AfF —ZE-mEF
Note HK$000 HK$'000
M & THET FET
Non-current assets EmEEE
Investment in subsidiaries REEBARIZIRE 26 6,484 6,484
Property, plant and equipment M- -BERRE 7 7
6,491 6,491
Current assets ) EE
Other receivables and deposits HthEWRERIRS 25 113 113
Amount due from the immediate FEW B ZERATRE
holding company 29 5 -
Amount due from a subsidiary FE U — R Y /B~ B SR IE 29 10 =
Cash and cash equivalents RekREeZEHEER 31 176 102
304 215
Current liabilities mE & |
Amount due to the ultimate A RAERATRIE
holding company 33 858 405
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASF B A B FRIE 34 24,929 20,666
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary FE A+ — 81 [5) 4 Fff /&8 2 R SR I8 34 - 5
Accruals and other payables B ERREMENRIE 32 1,278 2,577
27,065 23,653
Net current liabilities REBAEBEHE (26,761) (23,438)
Total assets less current liabilities HFERERRBAR (20,270) (16,947)
BESERERARAR
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Statement of Financial Position
B #5 AR R T

As at 31 March 2015 R=Z—HF=HA=+—H

2015 2014
—Z—-1F —E-F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E THET FET

Capital and reserves BER R
Share capital (&N 37 6,484 6,484
Reserves R 38 (26,754) (23,431)
Total equity BREs (20,270) (16,947)

The financial statement was approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 29 June 2015 and signed on its behalf
by:

Mr. Chen Jinshan Ms. Shum Ngai Pan

Executive Director Executive Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

FOREBME

For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

Attributable to owner of the Company

FATHAARE
(Accumulated
Share Share Other  Contribution  Translation Statutory loss)/retained Non-
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earning Sub-total interests Total
(RHEHE)/
B# BHER R HRER EREE EERE RERT M FREHE #i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx TEn ThR ThEx TEn TEn Thn ThEr TEn TEn
(Note 36) (Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c)) (Note (d)) (Note (e)
(HizE36) (Kizt(@) (RizE(b)) (HzE()) (HzE(d)) (Hizt(e))
At 1 April 2013 R=B-=f£MA-H 1 - = - 11,471 18,810 102,480 132,762 439 133,201
Profit for the year KRERRR - - - - - - 48,920 48,920 148 49,068
Other comprehensive income AEEEZARA
for the year - - - - 4,467 - - 4,467 8 4,475
Total comprehensive income AEEREUAAE
for the year - - - - 4,467 - 48,920 53,387 156 53,543
Effect of reorganisation EEEL 6,483 - (6,483) 866,311 - - - 866,811 - 866,811
Share Issuing expenses BARARX = (7.653) = = = = = (7.653) = (7,653)
Dividend paid to non-controlling HFERRRRARE
shareholders - - - - - - - - (179) (179)
Transfer to statutory reserve ERTETERE - - - = = 10,318 (10,318) = = =
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R-B-ME=RA=+-HK
—Z-MEMA-A 6,484 (7,653) (6,483) 866,811 15,938 29,128 141,082 1,045,307 416 1,045,723
Loss for the year AEEEER - - - - - - (772,949) (772,949) (331) (773,280)
Other comprehensive AEEHBEARA
income for the year - - - - 1,423 - - 1,423 - 1,423
Total comprehensive loss AEEREFBAR
for the year - B B B 1423 B (772,949) (771,526) (331) (771,857)
Non-controlling interests arising on ELE i) PGl
the acquisition of subsidiaries (note 27) 3 RRE (KzH27) - - - - - - - - 9,178 9,178
Transfer to statutory reserve BREITHE - - - = = 2,061 (2,061) = = =
At 31 March 2015 RZZ-5EZA=+-H 6,484 (7,653) (6,483) 866,811 17,361 31,189 (633,928) 273,781 9,263 283,044
Notes: B &E
(a) Share premium (a) B inidE
The amount of approximately HK$7,653,000 represents the #97,653,000B T2 £ EEIEA QTR R =-Z
capitalised listing expenses arised from the listing of the shares of — =5+ A+ - HEBBBAERZFEBRL
the Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong ABMIFNERLETEEZER LD
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 11 October 2013. BXe
(b) Other reserve (b) it 6% s

Upon the completion of the reorganisation on 3 September 2013,
the amount of approximately HK$6,483,000 represented the
difference between the Company’s share of nominal value of the
paid-up capital of the subsidiaries acquired over the Company’s
cost of acquisition of the subsidiaries under common control
upon the reorganisation as detail in the prospectus dated on 30
September 2013.

R-ZE-=FhhBA=BxREA% REAR
MA—SE-—=FhA=+HZERELEA
8 96,483,000 TR IBIE A QT 2 Kt
BARABHEAZHERBAATESERE
il T U B B A B 2 AN FRIB ©

ERSEERERAR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

n'7.|' (=) lTl" fm 52 E’] %E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 H&Z=ZF—

AF=A=+—HLEFE

Notes: — continued

(c)

(d)

(e)

Contribution reserve

Capitalisation of the outstanding amount of approximately
HK$866,811,000 due from Timely Hero Enterprises Limited
(“Timely Hero”) to Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua
Xia") on 3 September 2013 in consideration of (i) the allotment
and issue 1 share of US$1 in the share capital of Timely Hero to
Luxuriant Expand Global Investment Limited (“Luxuriant Expand”),
credited as fully paid up, at the direction of Hua Xia; and (ii) the
allotment and issue of a total of 100 shares of US$1 each in the
share capital of Luxuriant Expand, all credited as fully paid up, to
Hua Xia in consideration of its receipt of 1 share in Timely Hero
at the direction of Hua Xia. Details of the reorganisation were set
out in the paragraph headed “The Reorganisation” in the section
headed “Corporate history, development and Reorganisation” in
the prospectus dated 30 September 2013.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 4.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by the relevant People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
laws and regulations, the subsidiaries of the Company establishing
in the PRC shall set aside 10% of its net profit after taxation
for the statutory surplus reserve fund (except where the reserve
balances has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ paid up capital).
The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the Board
of Directors and by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated
losses or increase capital.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
ROIRENRSEXR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E—RF —E—F
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Operating activities BEEB
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREFA (BE),EF (765,330) 74,181
Adjustments for: FEIER
Interest income FE U A (1,131) (695)
Interest expenses FERX 8,819 6,015
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments A HERIB 188 188
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - -BERZEBINE 5,085 3,653
Provision for impairment loss on trade and B R HAMERRIERE
other receivables BB E1E 3,961 518
Impairment loss on goodwill EmERNEEE 785,169 =
Reversal of impairment loss of trade and g5 REMEKRFIERE
other receivables B8 o (130) (746)
Fair value gain on financial asset at fair value BEAFTEEERREEZ
through profit or loss tREEZATERS - (44)
Change in fair value of investment properties REMEQRNFLEEH 252 =
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE BRERZEZ
equipment [ F=] 80 26
Operating cash flows before movements EEECEHNRERANE
in working capital 36,963 83,096
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERD, () 15,564 (6,803)
Decrease in trade and other receivables and EEREHMEWFIER
deposits ReRD 30,484 7,398
Decrease in trade and other payables B REMENMFIERD (62,965) (29,303)
Increase in amounts due FEWRZRAKEB AT
from fellow subsidiaries FRIE N (5,665) (2,502)
Increase in amount due from the immediate FEWEBEZER D
holding company FRIRIE AN (10) -
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to non- FEAS — RE BT B 2 B FEHE AR
controlling shareholders of a subsidiary REFE ORd) (134) 134
Decrease in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  FE{t — BB Z& Kt B A 5 FUIE R 2 (1,032) (30)
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to the FEAT B AR IR A Bl FIE
ultimate holding company i, Crd) 507 (18,607)
Decrease/(increase) of financial asset at BEAFEEERREEREZ
fair value through profit or loss EWMEERD (M) 1,259 (1,216)
Cash generated from operations (KM EEE 14,971 32,167
Withholding tax paid e FENH - (2,383)
PRC enterprise income tax paid EHEMPETERESH (14,394) (22,058)
Net cash generated from BEEBHREREQPHE
operating activities 577 7,726
) BEREREERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

meMERNER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE=E—AF=A=+—HILFE
2015 2014
—HfF | ZE—@NOF
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FTERT
Investing activities BEEE
Interest received 2 WFE 1,131 695
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE BENKE (15,072) (5,263)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME - VJ%EZ R 12
equipment Frig 124 144
Net cash outflow from acquisition of g WJ%"\ Az
subsidiaries (Note 27) BERH 58 (MEE27) (5,073) -
Net cash used in investing activities BRETEFRARESRHE (18,890) (4,424)
Financing activities MEEE
Interest paid EFE (8.819) (6,015)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders EfEERRRERE - (179)
Share issuing expenses BITRMOBEAX - (7,653)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits SIRFETFEITRLD () 4,461 (13,772)
Proceeds from new bank borrowings HIRITERABRIE 153,067 88,193
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITHER (132,257) (51,656)
Net cash generated from financing activities MEEEMEHELBHE 16,452 8,918
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HeRBE&FERAE
cash equivalents (iRD) BB (1,861) 12,220
Cash and cash equivalents FNZHeRALEE
at the beginning of the year HHE 43,638 30,676
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEERESEH oL 1,252 742
Cash and cash equivalents FRZBERAESEE
at the end of the year HH 43,029 43,638
Analysis of balances of cash and cash RerRB&EEEE
equivalents o
Cash and cash equivalents HerRB&EEEE 43,029 43,638
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BT AZEFREMBERERZ—HBD-

consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm © B 15 ¥R R B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted Company
with limited liabilities in the Cayman Islands. The address of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information of the

annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holdings.
The Group is principally engaged in pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical retail
chain business as in the PRC. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The Company's shares have been listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange since 11 October 2013. The Company's
immediate holding company is Greatly Wealth Global Group
Limited (“Global Wealth”), a company incorporated in British
Virgin Islands. Greatly Wealth is a directly wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua
Xia"), a company incorporated in Cayman Islands on 28
May 2001 as an exempted company with Limited Liability, of
which are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM")
of the Stock Exchange and it is the ultimate holding
company of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the same as functional
currency of the Company, and the functional currency of
the most of the subsidiaries in Renminbi (“RMB"). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of HK$ (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.

— R E#H
AAARMEREIMATRERRE
RAR-AXDEMPEEREELE
2wt BN FROAER

ARBZEBREBRREEZR AEEE
EEPEREERMBNOBERERS
EEHRE -HEXZMB AR ZXBHT
RERE BIEERRMIFE26 ©

ARARZBHBE-ZE—=F+tAt+—RHE
EMIFERLED AQFZ2EEEZERD
ARABRBEEBRLF (TKE])
ZARRNRBELHSEMB L 2D
A - ABRDEEBEREEERLF ([F
BEzEERZEWBRAR EEAR=
EE-FRA-HN\HRHAERSEM
AL 2 ERHRBARA T RERFARIER
([RIZMR]) LT BEQXFTZHAER

A

REVBBRUBT([BL])25) A
ARBZHEERHER - KB HELQT
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BEAMN REMBRRUT BT (T8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm © B 15 ¥R R B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE=E—AF=A=+—HILFE

2. REORGANISATION

In the preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares

on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Group

underwent the reorgranisation (the

“Reorganisation”), as a

result of which the Company became the holding company

of the subsidiaries comprising the Group. The Reorganisation

included the following principal steps:

(a)

incorporation of Luxuriant Expand on 10 April 2012
and allotment and issue of 100 ordinary shares of

Luxuriant Expand to Hua Xia at par on 4 July 2012;

incorporation of the Company on 9 July 2012 in the
Cayman Islands and transfer of the incorporation
share from Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited to

Greatly Wealth at nil consideration;

acquisition of 1 ordinary share, representing the entire
issued share capital in Timely Hero, by Luxuriant
Expand from Hua Xia on 3 September 2013 in
consideration of the allotment and issue of 200 shares
of US$1 each in Luxuriant Expand, all credited as fully

paid up, to Hua Xia;
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

2. REORGANISATION - continued
(d) capitalisation of the outstanding amount of
HK$866,810,761 due from Timely Hero to Hua Xia on
3 September 2013 in consideration of (i) the allotment
and issue of 1 share of US$1 in the share capital of
Timely Hero to Luxuriant Expand, credited as fully paid
up, at the direction of Hua Xia; and (ii) the allotment
and issue of a total of 100 shares of US$1 each in the
share capital of Luxuriant Expand, all credited as fully
paid up, to Hua Xia in consideration of its receipt of 1

share in Timely Hero at the direction of Hua Xia; and

(e) acquisition of 300 shares in Luxuriant Expand,
representing its entire issued share capital by the
Company from Hua Xia on 3 September 2013
in consideration of (i) the allotment and issue of
648,405,299 shares, all credited as fully paid up, to
Greatly Wealth at the direction of Hua Xia and the
crediting as fully paid at par of the incorporation share
registered in the name of Greatly Wealth; and (ii) the
allotment and issue of 100 shares of US$1 each in the
share capital of Greatly Wealth, all credited as fully
paid up, to Hua Xia in consideration of its receipt of
648,405,299 shares from the Company at the direction
of Hua Xia.

Upon the completion of the Reorganisation on 3 September
2013, the Company become the holding company of the

companies now comprising the Group.

Particulars of the subsidiaries, which are all private
companies, of the Group as at 31 March 2015 are set out in
Note 26.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 ZE=Z—RF=A=1+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new standards, amendments and
interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™), which
are effective for the Group's financial year beginning on 1
April 2014.

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment Entities
HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Financial Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

HKAS 36 (Amendments) Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment Entities

The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an investment entity
and require a reporting entity that meets the definition of
an investment entity not to consolidate its subsidiaries but
instead to measure its subsidiaries at fair value through

profit or loss in its financial statements.

76 WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

BRI REEITZEREME
BEEN([FEMERES
")

RAFE AEEEEREATIHEES
EHEAE ((EERHMAE]) AiF
RAEER-2-NENA-BHKZ
BTN H AT A BT AR R
(THET &R A EA) -

EEORREREE REEE
F105 ERYHE
RERENER

BRETHENEIR

(BET%)
FREMRAENY. SRIA: 25-EHUBEER
(BET%) HHBAE

BREHREAFCY FUBEEZTHOSRRE
(BET%)

EREHENEY FETANBEERENENE
(BET%) MER

2R (ARMHRE HE
RBZEE)
-RBENH

FEMERSEUNS 105 -FEMH
BREEASE12RREREHEERSE27
MBI -RETHE
ERMBHREEANEI10RBITAERE
BERFHATEERFEREERRE
ZEBBERTEHRESHARWBAR M
AREVBH/RUAAFEFABREFE
HHMBQE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn © B 15 ¥R R B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities — continued

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is
required to:

. obtain funds from one or more investors for the
purpose of providing them with professional
investment management services;

o commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose
is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income, or both; and

] measure and evaluate performance of substantially all
of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of
set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount

Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to
disclose the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit
("CGU") to which goodwill or other intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives had been allocated when there has
been no impairment or reversal of impairment of the related
CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce additional
disclosure requirements regarding the fair value hierarchy,
key assumptions and valuation techniques used when the
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU was determined
based on its fair value less costs of disposal.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE=Z—RF=A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from the
requirement to discontinue hedge accounting when a
derivative hedging instrument is novated under certain
circumstances. The amendments also clarify that any change
to the fair value of the derivative hedging instrument arising
from the novation should be included in the assessment of

hedge effectiveness.
HK (IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

HK (IFRIC) = Int 21 Levies addresses the issue of when to
recognise a liability to pay a levy. The interpretation defines
a levy, and specifies that the obligating event that gives rise
to the liability is the activity that triggers the payment of the
levy, as identified by legislation. The interpretation provides
guidance on how different levy arrangements should be
accounted for, in particular, it clarifies that neither economic
compulsion nor the going concern basis of financial
statements preparation implies that an entity has a present
obligation to pay a levy that will be triggered by operating in

a future period.

The application of the above new and revised HKFRSs had no
material effect on how the results and financial position for
the current or prior accounting periods have been prepared
and presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has

been required.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that have

been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS

9 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 28 (2011)
(Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 11 (Amendments)

HKFRS 14

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-
2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-
2013 Cycle'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-
2014 Cycle*

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and
Transition Disclosure®

Financial Instruments®

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception*

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Accounting for Acquisition of Interests in
Joint Operation*
Regulatory Deferral Accounts?
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE=ZE—HF=A=1+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. ER#MAIREBIIZCEEME
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BEEAN ([FRMBEEE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued A1) —#&

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers® EEUBHEEN REEFEAZKE’
#1585
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative* ERSHENSE  REIPM
(BAT%)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of EREHENE R HENEREH 2 EHA L
(Amendments) Depreciation and Amortisation BESER$38%
(BAT%)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants* EREHERE R B¥ £REZEN
(Amendments) BESERFN%
(AT %)
HKAS 19 (2011) Defined Benefit Plans: Employee EREHENEIE RERNGE EERXN
(Amendments) Contribution’ (ZB--F)
(AT %)
HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate Financial BREHREAEE BINEERZERRE
Statements’ (BAT%)
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 L A—E—NFLA-—HARZEHBRZF
EHREEMR
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, 2 BRERGIMERIN RZF—NELA
with limited exceptions — BB EERARBEN
? Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning 3 NoB-—NE—B—AS2EBEBoE
on or 1 January 2016 BEEEBMBREENTBERREN
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 4 RoE—xE—B—AR o BERE
2016 EHRIEN
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 5 RoE—tF—A—AR BB E
) Ef’;”_ , . EHEER
ective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January a ReE—\E—F—BR o AEE T E
2018 RN
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=Z—RF=A=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which

are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions
of ‘vesting condition” and ‘market condition’; and (ii)
add definitions for ‘performance condition” and ‘service
condition” which were previously included within the
definition of ‘vesting condition’. The amendments to HKFRS
2 are effective for share-based payment transactions for

which the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability should
be measured at fair value at each reporting date, irrespective
of whether the contingent consideration is a financial
instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a
non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other
than measurement period adjustments) should be recognised
in profit and loss. The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective
for business combinations for which the acquisition date is
on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose
the judgements made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria to operating segments, including a
description of the operating segments aggregated and the
economic indicators assessed in determining whether the
operating segments have ‘similar economic characteristics’;
and (ii) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the
reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should only
be provided if the segment assets are regularly provided to

the chief operating decision-maker.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
- continued

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS
13 clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove the
ability to measure short term receivables and payables with
no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial. As
the amendments do not contain any effective date, they are

considered to be immediately effective.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove
perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated
depreciation/amortisation when an item of property, plant
and equipment or an intangible asset is revalued. The
amended standards clarify that the gross carrying amount
is adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaluation of
the carrying amount of the asset and that accumulated
depreciation/amortisation is the difference between the
gross carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking

into account accumulated impairment losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management
entity providing key management personnel services to a
reporting entity is a related party of the reporting entity.
Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose as related
party transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid
or payable to the management entity for the provision of key
management personnel services. However, disclosure of the

components of such compensation is not required.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material effect on the Group’s

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which

are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types
of joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint

arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes
all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted
for in accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9, even if those
contracts do not meet the definitions of financial assets or
financial liabilities within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and
HKFRS 3 are not mutually exclusive and application of both
standards may be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring

investment property must determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment

property in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material effect on the Group’s

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE=Z—RF=A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which

are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific guidance in
HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal
group) from held for sale to held for distribution to owners
(or vice versa), or when held-for-distribution accounting is

discontinued. The amendments apply prospectively.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance to
clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement
in a transferred asset for the purpose of the disclosures
required in relation to transferred assets and clarify that
the offsetting disclosures (introduced in the amendments
to HKFRS 7 Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities issued in December 2011 and effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013) are not
explicitly required for all interim periods. However, the
disclosures may need to be included in condensed interim
financial statements to comply with HKAS 34 Interim

Financial Reporting.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high quality
corporate bonds used to estimate the discount rate for post-
employment benefits should be issued in the same currency
as the benefits to be paid. These amendments would
result in the depth of the market for high quality corporate
bonds being assessed at currency level. The amendments
apply from the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented in the financial statements in which the
amendments are first applied. Any initial adjustment arising
should be recognised in retained earnings at the beginning

of that period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
- continued

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements
relating to information required by HKAS 34 that is
presented elsewhere within the interim financial report but
outside the interim financial statements. The amendments
require that such information be incorporated by way of a
cross reference from the interim financial statements to the
other part of the interim financial report that is available to
users on the same terms and at the same time as the interim

financial statements.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
will have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated

financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS
9 was amended in 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for

derecognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE=Z—RF=A=1+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — continued

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent reporting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

o With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities” credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — continued

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in
the future may have an impact on the amounts reported
in respect of the Group’'s financial assets and financial
liabilities. Regarding the Group's financial assets, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect

until a detailed review has been completed.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
28 (2011) Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

The narrow-scope amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 introduce clarifications to the requirements when
accounting for investment entities. The amendments also
provide relief in particular circumstances, which will reduce

the costs of applying the Standards.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material impact on the Group’s

consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKFRS 10:

- An exception from the general requirement of full gain
or loss recognition has been introduced into HKFRS
10 for the loss control of a subsidiary that does not
contain a business in a transaction with an associate or
a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity

method.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE=Z—RF=A=1+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture — continued

- New guidance has been introduced requiring that
gains or losses resulting from those transactions are
recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses
resulting from the remeasurement at fair value of
investments retained in any former subsidiary that
has become an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method are recognised
in the former parent’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new

associate or joint venture.
Amendments to HKAS 28:

- The requirements on gains and losses resulting from
transactions between an entity and its associate or joint
venture have been amended to relate only to assets

that do not constitute a business.

- A new requirement has been introduced that gains or
losses from downstream transactions involving assets
that constitute a business between an entity and its
associate or joint venture must be recognised in full in

the investor’s financial statements.

- A requirement has been added that an entity needs to
consider whether assets that are sold or contributed in
separate transactions constitute a business and should

be accounted for as a single transaction.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture — continued

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 will have a material

impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for

Acquisition of Interests in Joint Operation

HKFRS 11 addresses the accounting for interests in joint
ventures and joint operations. The amendments add new
guidance on how to account for the acquisition of an
interest in a joint operation that constitutes a business. The
amendments specify the appropriate accounting treatment
for such acquisitions. The directors do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments to HKFRS 11 will have
a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

HKFRS 14 permits first-time adopters to continue to
recognise amounts related to rate regulation in accordance
with their previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
("GAAP") requirements when they adopt HKFRS. However,
to enhance comparability with entities that already apply
HKFRS and do not recognise such amounts, the standard
requires that the effect of rate regulation must be presented
separately from other items. An entity that already presents
HKFRS financial statements is not eligible to apply the
standard. The directors do not anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 14 will have a significant impact on the Group's

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE2=Z—RF=A=1+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
The core principle of HKFRS 15 is for companies to recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to
customers in amounts that reflect the consideration (that is,
payment) to which the company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The new standard will
also result in enhanced disclosures about revenue, provide
guidance for transactions that were not previously addressed
comprehensively and improve guidance for multiple-element

arrangements.

HKFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2017 with earlier application permitted.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 are designed to further
encourage companies to apply professional judgement in
determining what information to disclose in their financial
statements. For example, the amendments make clear that
materiality applies to the whole of financial statements and
that the inclusion of immaterial information can inhibit
the usefulness of financial disclosures. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that companies should use professional
judgement in determining where and in what order

information is presented in the financial disclosures.

The amendments can be applied immediately and become
mandatory for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 2 =F—RF=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 both establish the principle for the
basis of depreciation and amortisation as being the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits of
an asset. The amendments clarify that the use of revenue-
based methods to calculate the depreciation of an asset is
not appropriate because revenue generated by an activity
that includes the use of an asset generally reflects factors
other than the consumption of the economic benefits

embodied in the asset.

The amendments also clarify that revenue is generally
presumed to be an inappropriate basis for measuring the
consumption of the economic benefits embodied in an
intangible asset. This presumption, however, can be rebutted

in certain limited circumstances.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016 with earlier application
permitted.

Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011) Defined Benefit
Plans: Employee Contributions

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify how an entity should
account for contributions made by employees or third
parties to defined benefit plans, based on whether those
contributions are dependent on the number of years of

service provided by the employee.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE2=Z—RF=A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011) Defined Benefit

Plans: Employee Contributions — continued

For contributions that are independent of the number
of years of service, the entity may either recognise the
contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the period
in which the related service is rendered, or to attribute them
to the employees’ periods of service using the projected unit
credit method; whereas for contributions that are dependent
on the number of years of service, the entity is required to

attribute them to the employees’ periods of service.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 19 will have a significant impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements as the Group

does not have any defined benefit plans.

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method
to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates in their separate financial statements. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on

or after 1 January 2016 with earlier application permitted.

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact
of the above new HKFRSs upon initial application but is not
yet in a position to state whether the above new HKFRSs will
have a significant impact on the Group's and the Company's

results of operations and financial position.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which
collective term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
HKASs and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rule”)_and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making judgments about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Judgments made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustments in the next year are discussed in Note 5

to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of significant accounting policies adopted by

4.
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the Group in the preparation of the consolidated financial S EHERBEHIIWOT
statements is set out below:
Basis of preparation R

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is historical cost except
for certain financial assets (including derivative financial
instruments) and investment properties that are measured at
fair value. Historical cost is generally based in the fair value

of the consideration of given in exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value
in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of preparation - continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its

subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and
- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group's voting rights in an

investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

- the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote

holders;

- potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

- rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

- any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at

previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation - continued

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity

and attributed to owners of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries — continued

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a

joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised

in profit or loss as incurred.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are

measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as

a bargain purchase gain.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE2=Z—RF=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRSs.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments against
goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that

existed at the acquisition date.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss

being recognised in profit or loss.

Merger accounting for common control
combination

The financial statement incorporates the financial statement
items of the combining entities or business in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had been
combined from the date when the combining entities or

businesses first came under the control of the controlling

party.

The net assets of the combining entities or business are
combined using the existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognised with respect
to goodwill or any excess of acquirer’'s interest in the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over its cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the contribution of the

controlling party’s interest.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Merger accounting for common control
combination - continued

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each of
the combining entities or business from the earliest date
presented or since the date when combining entities or
business first came under common control, where this is a
shorter period, regardless of the date of common control

combination.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between the combining entities or business are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated but considered
as an impairment indicator of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of combining entities or business have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with

the policies adopted by the Group.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration
fees, cost of furnishing information to shareholders, costs
or losses incurred in combining operations of the previously
separate businesses, etc., incurred in relation to the common
control combination that is to be accounted for by using
merger accounting are recognised as an expense in the

period in which they are incurred.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business

less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Goodwill - continued
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’'s CGUs (or groups of CGUs) that is

expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss

on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE2=Z—RF=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Property, plant and equipment - continued

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the property, plant and equipment,
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that

asset.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, using the straight line
method, over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates are as follows:

Over lease term
20%
20%

Leasehold improvements
Motor vehicle

Office equipment

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit and loss and other comprehensive income.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL"). The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the

market place.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial

asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 2= —RF=A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Financial assets at FVTPL — continued

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading

may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial

asset and is included in the “other revenue”.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Financial assets at FVTPL — continued

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade receivables, prepayments
and other receivables, loan receivables and cash and cash
equivalents) are carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less any identified impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the assets’ carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses
were recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment losses
reversed do not exceed what the amortised cost would have

been had the impairment losses not been recognised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The Group's
financial liabilities are generally classified into other financial
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of

financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
bank loans and other loans) are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis

other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued
Equity instrument

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises

a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

4.

EXEMHRRBE-&

&MIARA-&
MERARRBRFEIA-&
KATA

RABBTHRATERWEAERIR
RARR MIBRE BT RA-

AR

EREEREREZSNENERE R
EHBEEMER BB ARKD
BEETS RN AEELSHUSHE
RUBEE -MAKEILRERTRRE
FREREz @A D R B 3R - I 48 4%
HEEREE AAKEUAEFRESED
[REBEIEELEIEBEEE WAL
BRECERVBEENAE BRI
ZEBRRER ANEEEBEREIZTE
EEYRIACWAEREZRRMAER -

PHBEEIAMBEER EERMER
EWEERAREAEURNEMEEK
mRREERTEAZRFTRERER
Bz EZRMINERER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm © B 15 ¥R R B 53X

For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Derecognition — continued

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis
of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the

relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, other costs that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition, is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and pledged bank deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
positions, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted to use.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flows
to the Group and revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

as follows:

(a) Sales of goods
Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyers, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using effective interest method. When a
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flows discounted at original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans is recognised using the
original effective interest rate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage
and the cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the period in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,

these amounts are stated at their present values.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and to the state-managed retirement benefits
schemes for the employees of the Group’s overseas entities
are recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is

without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit
plans under which the Group pays fixed contributions into
separate entities such as social security plans in the PRC,
and the Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further contributions if any of the funds do not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods. The
Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans are

recognised in the financial year to which they relate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

114

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years,
and it further excludes consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income items that are never

taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary difference can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill (or negative
goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investment in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Income tax - continued

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the liability is settled or
the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the

deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss,
except when they related to items that are recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business

combination.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the
time value of money is material, the amount of a provision
is the present value of the expenditures expected to be

required to settle the obligations.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of

obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as a

provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain

events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is

virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

4.

EXEMHRRBE-&

BRAARRAARE
FREBERBESHMAESIENE
F BEEEAT-—HASHAFAEEH
Pz &I 89 1 A HE R R EAF B EH T
BRERTHEBR - IREETTRESBE
EHEIBWRAEME  EART AR
FEEBERAL NEFEEIETSE
Mt EmMARBHER

RARMABRED  BEREAUHR
RUTEE P T U TR o 48R Hh A0 R 3
PHATRBRERRN It EE &
BRARME-

FREEREBESEHMELENEESR
E UEEERG—HASHAFLAEE
Pt ZH N T HBERREFNHERT
BAERTRERIT

FREEFTSHER  BEEREBERNZET
BEMAR AR S M MRM LA E o
R ELABEERBENZERA  AESHER
BE-

5

RERZERNEEER 2 PBHE|RRE - 2L
ZEBRUWEEBUNZEE (SN ET
ZREZVBRG AP 2ERERRER
o R|EHAR LN EEZERER
VRZAZERERENRE - ELQATVE
DIOMNBSEEZFERIRE  HERQFE
BEER2ERERBRE - ZBERA
BUNESEEZFERRBEBAEENR

o

i 18



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm © B 15 ¥R R B 53X

For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies - continued
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to

interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

J exchange differences on transactions entered into in

order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary

items.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.

POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies - continued

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive

income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interests and other costs incurred in
connection with the borrowing of funds. All borrowing costs
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the period in which they

are incurred.

Related party transactions
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group, if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group’s parent.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Related party transactions — continued

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or

an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Related party transactions — continued
Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources and obligations

between related parties.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on the straight-line

basis over the lease terms.

Leasing

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance assets are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair values at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly to the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

4.

EXEMHRRBE-&

MBALXS-#&
—BATHEREEZATRERET
REGRMTHHERNSEIZHEE
HREKE °

E-EXFHABALZEFEERRE
FEBE HESBEBALIRS -

#HE

HHEBAAREBEEEMBEE RIS EH
HEBRNEEARIEELEESE - KER
EETENHAEREEFHEZERER
ERGERBRAMEEKSERPR-

HE

FHREESHBA
KEeBECHSWATTREBEEESR
DESZRGaREEREMEHKER
AR - BEERZHEEEHEREE Y
SEHERASTAMEEEZREME I
EREBANEREIEARFEX

FREESEEA
EREEESREZEERMAERBEZ
AFPEIFREAETRREZIBEERE
ARAREEE - HEAZHEREERSE
BMBERRRIEREREAIE -AEN
RELEARMBEERAREEREHRZ
BAEHDIE Mt EZE 8 ERNHRE
ZEEFMR -BBERAEENGESRER
Ht2mU s R MR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm © B 15 ¥R R B 53X

For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Leasing - continued

The Group as lessee

Rental payable under operating leases are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a

straight-line basis.

Prepaid lease payments for land use rights

Prepaid lease payments for land use rights is stated as
cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of interest in
leasehold land are amortised on a straight line basis over the

relevant interest in leasehold land.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including property under
construction for such purpose). Investment properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are

included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Investment properties — continued

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the net
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the

property is derecognised.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial information, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group's most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 4, management is required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors have made in the
process of applying the Group accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised

in the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
tax authorities. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such

determination is made.
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5.

AF=A=+—HLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES - continued

(b)

(c)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for an asset at the end of each reporting
period. The asset is tested for impairment when there
are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the asset is allocated
will be required. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. A change in the
estimated future cash flows and/or the discount rate
applied will result in an adjustment to the estimated

impairment provision previously made.

Useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment

In determining the useful life and residual value of
an item of property, plant and equipment, the Group
has to consider various factors, such as technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in production, or from a change in
the market demand for the product or service output
of the asset, expected usage of the asset, expected
physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use
of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the
asset is based on the experience of the Group with
similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional
depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives and/
or the residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment are different from the previous estimation.
Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the
end of the reporting period based on changes in

circumstances.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES - continued

(d) Estimated impairment of goodwiill

(e)

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has
been impairment of goodwill in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 3. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units are determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates and assumptions made
by management on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions

underlying the value-in-use calculations.

Impairment of trade receivables

The aged debt profile of trade debtors is reviewed on a
regular basis to ensure that the trade debtor balances
are collectible and follow up actions are promptly
carried out if the agreed credit periods have been
exceeded. However, from time to time, the Group may
experience delays in collection. Where recoverability of
trade debtor balances are called into doubts, specific
provisions for bad and doubtful debts are made
based on credit status of the customers, the aged
analysis of the trade receivable balances and write-off
history. Certain receivables may be initially identified
as collectible, yet subsequently become uncollectible
and result in a subsequent write-off of the related
receivable to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Changes in the
collectability of trade receivables for which provisions

are not made could affect our results of operations.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. EXEHAIERR A&
AND ESTIMATES - continued

(f) Fair value of investment properties (f) BEVELTFE
The fair value of each investment property is BERENENATFERSHRSH
individually determined at the end of each reporting ARBEETE RAEELEEE
period based on its market value and by adopting AEE HEELBERREEZE
direct comparison method. Direct comparison method MEAURRAREHERSZRBREH
assumes each of these properties is capable of being M LAHEBNEERE RE
sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant MENATESRBEEE-

possession and by making reference to comparable
sales evidence as available in the relevant market
condition, the fair value of the investment properties

will change in future.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. &EMTITAH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) BENBSHEMTIA
The Group The Company
*5E 3|
2015 2014 2015 2014
—2-1f “EZ-|mE —Z2-1f “Z-|mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR THT TR
Financial assets HERE
Loans and receivables ERRERRE
- trade and other receivables -ESREMEKNE 332,702 300,680 - -
— amount due from the -EREEERDRNE
immediate holding company 15 5 5 -
— amounts due from fellow -RREANE
subsidiaries DRFE 8,621 2,956 - =
— amount due from a subsidiary -ER-BHELRRE - - 10 =
- Cash and cash equivalents -HeRBREEEER 43,029 43,638 176 102
~ Pledged bank deposits -EEARTEX 12,970 17,431 - =
Financial assets at fair value RATFEERBHERZ
through profit or loss B¥ERE - 1,259 - =
397,337 365,969 191 102
Financial liabilities MBAR
At amortised cost REHEAAK
— trade and other payables -BSREMEMKE 224,796 260,131 1,278 2,577
— amount due to the ultimate -ERRAEZERDTRE
holding company 4,515 4,008 858 405
— amounts due to fellow -ENRANBEARTE
subsidiaries - 1,032 - 5
— amounts due to subsidiaries - B RNE - = 24,929 20,666
- amounts due to non-controlling  —~EAHBATZ
shareholders of subsidiary FERBRRTE - 134 - -
- bank borrowings —RATER 121,454 88,088 - =
350,765 353,393 27,065 23,653
ERESEEERERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank deposits, amount due from the
immediate holding company, amount due from a fellow
subsidiary, financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss, trade and other payables, bank borrowings,
amount due to the ultimate holding company, amounts
due to fellow subsidiaries and amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiary. The details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate
risk and currency risk. The directors review and agree
policies for managing each of these risks and they are

summarised below.

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial assets.
No other financial assets carry a significant exposure to

credit risk.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. &EMTITH-#&
(b) HERBREEEAERBE &

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk - continued

The Group's concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in the PRC. The Group
also has concentration of credit risk by customers as
approximately 31.5% of total trade receivables were
due from the Group’s five largest customers as at 31
March 2015 (2014: 16.4%).

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
on a timely basis and adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts overdue. In this
regards, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents are mainly deposited in the state controlled
PRC banks which the directors assessed the credit risk

to be insignificant.

=R —
rEERWBEIINEERRE
ZEFATE-HRE-Z—HF
ZA=+-—H BSEWRREALARE
FARNEIN %A ERKES
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Liquidity risk o B E & W R
Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available nBETRRABELIESESEN

to meet liabilities as they fall due, and it results
from amount and maturity mismatches of assets and
liabilities. The Group will consistently maintain a
prudent financial policy and ensure that it maintains

sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMIR-#&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERKREERHERBE &
policies — continued
Liquidity risk — continued mEE & E -\
The following tables detail Group's contractual TRFIFEEGHEBHGBREN
maturity for its financial liabilities. The tables has been FH WX BEFAEEZEREE
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of HEizH KB ERMBERENER
financial liabilities based on the earliest dates on which Ho TREFEINERTERERE
Group can be required to pay. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows.
The Group & H
Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective or within Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flow amount
mEFy BRERY EHRRE
{3 R—%£R BE-% RESE R fE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FTET FTET TERT TET
As at 31 March 2015 R-ZZ-R¥=ZA=+-H
Trade and other payables ESRAMEMTE - 224,796 - 224,796 224,796
Amount due to the ultimate holding ENRAERDAFE
company - 4,515 - 4,515 4,515
Bank borrowings RITEN 8.5 126,975 - 126,975 121,454
356,286 - 356,286 350,765
As at 31 March 2014 RZE-ME=ZR=+—-H
Trade and other payables ESREMELRE - 260,131 - 260,131 260,131
Amount due to the ultimate holding ENRAERDAFTE
company - 4,008 - 4,008 4,008
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENREZKE QKA = 1,032 = 1,032 1,032
Amounts due to non-controlling EANBARZFERRRTE
shareholders of subsidiary - 134 - 134 134
Bank borrowings BITER 8.1 90,289 - 90,289 88,088
355,594 = 355,594 353,393
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

&MI AR

(b) MERREEZEARRBR &

W)W & W B -

The Company b 3/ |
Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective or within Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flow amount
mEFY RERY FHRAE
ERfIE R-%R Ba-% RERE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% THET THET THET THET
As at 31 March 2015 R-E-RF¥=A=+-H
Accruals and other payables B EREmENRE - 1,278 - 1,278 1,278
Amount due to the ultimate holding BASAERARDHNE
company - 858 - 858 858
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATH B A RIFIE - 24,929 - 24,929 24,929
27,065 - 27,065 27,065
As at 31 March 2014 RZEB-BE=A=1+—H
Accruals and other payables EstHEREMENRE = 2,577 = 2,577 2,577
Amount due to the ultimate holding BN RAERDATE
company - 405 - 405 405
Amounts due to subsidiaries EAHELRNE - 20,666 - 20,666 20,666
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary B —BERKERRRE - 5 - 5 5
23,653 - 23,653 23,653
BERREERARAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 @E=E—AF=A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity management
rests with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework
for the management of the Group’s short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the

maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has available
unutilised short and medium term bank loan
facilities of approximately HK$64,983,000
(2014:HK$111,164,000).

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to fair value interest rate risk to
fixed rate borrowings is minimal because the Group has

been keeping borrowings at variable rates.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank balances and bank
borrowings (Note 35). The Group's cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of interest rates arising from the Group’s RMB

denominated borrowings.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for the
floating rate bank borrowings. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease
throughout the reporting period is used internally for

assessment of possible change in interest rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s profit for the year would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$408,000 (2014: HK$131,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to

interest rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings.

Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity's

functional currency.

The main operations of the Group were in the PRC
and most of the transactions were denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB"). Foreign exchange risk arises from
the foreign currency denominated of commercial
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group has no
significant direct exposure to foreign currencies as most
of the commercial transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency as the functional currency

of each entity of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Currency risk — continued

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, since
the Company risk is minimal, no sensitivity analysis is

presented.

Fair value measurement
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

(i) The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid and ask prices

respectively.

(i)  The fair values of other financial assets
and financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models (e.g.
discounted cash flow analysis using observable

and/or unobservable inputs).

The carrying amount of other financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost, approximate their
respective fair values due to the relatively short-term

nature of these financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 2= —RF=A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
The Group's financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to

which the fair value is observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities;

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quote prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (unobservable inputs).

6. &M I AR
(b) MERREEZEARRBR &

RiFAHMBERARARRBZOFE
HE
REBRYSEIAZRDFETE
MEMIADNKREANFENTEHE
BESBIREMR-

s IRLVEFEBERREEE
FEENERTHENRE (R
KRE)FESE

e 2RNAFVEFEEREEY
BETEE (BER) REE
(MRERESH BEMSE
BWABE ORTEMARE
BROMFTESH K

o BRAFEFERUGERN
SRESGH  BEEGERMER
BRELFRETEEDSHE

(THBEHBE)GENEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6.
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

- continued

As at 31 March 2015

emMI AR
(b) MERREEZEARRBR &

RESMERIEARRBZILFE

¥ B

R-E—HAF=A=+—8H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1% 24k 3R #t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#ET FTHET FTHET FiET
Financial assets at fair value ~ RAFEZERER
through profit or loss JIRM K EE - - - -
As at 31 March 2014 R-ZE-—MNFE=A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
14 28 38 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TER TET TEx
Financial assets at fair value ~ RAFPEZERER
through profit or loss SIRMNEB B EE 1,259 - - 1,259

During the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014,
there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into or
out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial

liabilities.

136 WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

BE-_Z—HFR-_ZF—NE=A
E+—BLEFER 1 R2KMEILE
AFEFEER FENVBEE
R EENRIREARESE -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm © B 15 ¥R R B 53X

For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group's capital management
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital

during the reporting period.

The Group monitors capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group
overall strategy remains unchanged during the reporting

period.

BxERER
AEEEREANERERRREAE
BUSEEEZENED  URESRER
MERLER UXEHEBBERR SRR
ESBABE FAEESHRSERES
LERERRBAHHELARE DGR
FHBEREE FAEELSREXMGTF
RERNKRERTE - REEXATRRAET
HRMD -RBEHE FEEEELNE
B BRYABEIEEMEE-

FEEEZRESN UBRRASENSERE
RAZRBEEELE FARNEBELER
ERANTE AFEDATRERER -

RBEEHE AERENEERBLES
& o
EEREZERARAF
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

7. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued 7. EXxRMBEER -

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt AEBENEXAEBEEELR (RITHE

(bank borrowings), cash and cash equivalents and equity R) HeRBESEEEBUREAQT

attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued BEEANEGLERZ (BESBITRARR
share capital and reserves. &) e

The Group
*xEH

2015 2014

—2-HifF | —T—@NmF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THExT

Debt (Note (a)) &% (Mi5E(a) 121,454 88,088

Cash and cash equivalents BHeRBELESHER (43,029) (43,638)

Net debt B FA 78,425 44,450

Equity (Note (b)) R (MiEE(b) 273,781 1,045,307

Gearing ratio EEEEBLE 0.29 0.04
Notes: B &E -

(a)  Debts represented by bank borrowings as set out in Note 35.

(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners

of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

OPERATING SEGMENT 8. EESM

Information reported internally to the chief operating MEELEEAREABEZBRUAEERD
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and BERFZASBEREZER DEBERAR
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of NeRMtcE R ER - REBHES
goods or services delivered or provided. The Group organised AWMELE D R E 2 (a) 2 m it 3
into two operating divisions: (a) pharmaceutical wholesale FoHEEXRR O ERTEEHEHER 2S5
and distribution business and (b) pharmaceutical retail chain PWBIAEE2HRASEER 2 EfE o

business in the PRC. These divisions are the basis on which

the Group reports its segment information.

Segment revenue and results SRR RER
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE_Z—HAF=A=+—HL=EE
Pharmaceutical
wholesale and Pharmaceutical
distribution retail chain
business business Eliminations Consolidated
ERRER ERZE
DHEE EHEE He e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THET THET
Turnover BEE
External sales HIMEE 1,346,925 220,762 - 1,567,687
Inter-segment sales DEEHEE 51,384 38,613 (89,997) -
Total turnover Pl 1,398,309 259,375 (89,997) 1,567,687
Inter-segment sales are charged SEBEENRATF
atarm's length BEWE
Results E 1]
Segment results DEEE (757,862) 5,799 - (752,063)
Unallocated other revenue RAE 2 E s 1
Unallocated other income Aoz HEMKRA -
Unallocated corporate expenses AAMZLELH (4,449)
Loss from operations REFE (756,511)
Finance costs BHEHR (8,819)
Loss before taxation R AR (765,330)
Taxation BB (7,950)
Loss for the year KEEHE (773,280)

| ERSEERERAR 139
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 ZE=Z—RF=A=1+—HILFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued 8.

Segment revenue and results - continued

For the year ended 31 March 2014

EENHE-&
DHERBREE &
BE-Z—NE=A=1+—HLFE

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and Pharmaceutical
distribution retail chain
business business Eliminations Consolidated
ERHER BEREE
DEHER BEER e 2e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TET TET TER
Turnover BXE
External sales HIMEE 1,858,355 238,100 - 2,096,455
Inter-segment sales SEBHEE 56,861 - (56,861) =
Total turnover HExw 1,915,216 238,100 (56,861) 2,096,455
Inter-segment sales are charged PEEHEDRAT
at arm’s length HEWE
Results ES |
Segment results SEER 68,198 27,730 - 95,928
Unallocated other revenue RoWzEf kR 1
Unallocated other income ROz EMKA =
Unallocated corporate expenses RABMzEEXE (15,733)
Profit from operations BexBas 80,196
Finance costs k&R (6,015)
Profit before taxation Rt B0 % A 74,181
Taxation B\ (25,113)
Profit for the year KEERER 49,068

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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8. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Segment assets and liabilities

At 31 March 2015

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

8. EESW-&
SHRERAR

R-S—H1F=RA=+—8H

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and

Pharmaceutical

distribution retail chain
business business Consolidated
ERHBER BRTE
PUEE EEEE =e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET
Consolidated statement of financial position & MBEKAE
Assets BE
Segment assets NEEE 502,453 140,347 642,800
Unallocated corporate assets RO LEEE 12,540
Consolidated total assets RREEHRE 655,340
Liabilities AR
Segment liabilities 2EEE 313,177 53,321 366,498
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROz LEEE 5,798
Consolidated total liabilities neEBfERE 372,296
BESERERARAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 ZE=Z—RF=A=1+—HILFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued 8. BENMN—&
Segment assets and liabilities — continued SHEAERAR -
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE—NF=A=+—H
Pharmaceutical
wholesale and Pharmaceutical
distribution retail chain
business business Consolidated
BEfBER BnTE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TERT TExT

Consolidated statement of financial position $&MBEKAE

Assets BE
Segment assets PHEE 1,307,950 115,840 1,423,790
Unallocated corporate assets APE2EERE 8,929
Consolidated total assets RREEMHE 1,432,719
Liabilities Rfi
Segment liabilities PEEE 341,356 39,030 380,386
Unallocated corporate liabilities APEztEEE 6,610
Consolidated total liabilities RAREEHEE 386,996
142 WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued 8. BENE-—1&

Other segment information
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Hftt & A EH

BE_Z-AF=-A=+—HL=EE

Pharmaceutical
wholesale Pharmaceutical
and distribution retail chain
business business Unallocated Consolidated
ERRER ERTE
PHEE EHER xAE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THET TET
Other information Htt g8
Capital expenditure EREX 4,075 11,061 6 15,142
Depreciation e 2,030 3,042 13 5,085
Amortisation of prepaid lease BABERERY
payments - 188 - 188
Impairment loss on goodwill BERERE 785,169 - - 785,169
Reversal of impairment loss HE S REMERFTERR
recognized in respect of trade and HEBBREE
other receivables 130 - - 130
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE -BEK
equipment FEZER 40 40 - 80
Provision for impairment loss of BoREMERREZ
trade and other receivables HEBERE 2,123 1,838 - 3,961
Change in fair value of RENEATFEED
investment properties - 252 - 252
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE-_Z-—NF=A=+—HLFE
Pharmaceutical
wholesale Pharmaceutical
and distribution retail chain
business business Unallocated Consolidated
ERHBER EREZE
DEER BHEER AAE =E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET TR
Other information HttEH
Capital expenditure BARX 1,854 3,402 7 5,263
Depreciation e 1,570 2,070 13 3,653
Amortisation of prepaid lease BABERERS
payments - 188 - 188
Reversal of impairment loss of BEESREMERTEZ
trade and other receivables REEE 645 101 = 746
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment FEZER 26 - - 26
Impairment loss recognised in respect  #E 5 & E BN FIE
of trade and other receivables BRREER 499 19 = 518
Note: B = -

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment.

EXHXBREHNE BRERRBEZRE-

ERSEERERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE=Z—RF=A=1+—HILFE

144

OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note
4. Segment results represent the profit generated by each
segment without allocation of finance costs and taxation.
Unallocated corporate expenses mainly include directors’
remuneration and other central administration costs. This is
the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker
for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of

segment performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than goodwill and unallocated corporate assets.
Unallocated corporate assets mainly include cash
and cash equivalents of the central administration

companies.

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than unallocated corporate liabilities. Unallocated
corporate liabilities mainly include the amount due to
ultimate holding company, accruals and other payables

of the central administration companies.

Geographical information

The Group operates in two principal areas — pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution business and pharmaceutical
retail chain business operates in the PRC and administrative

activity operates in Hong Kong.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Geographical information - continued
The Group’s revenue is solely generated from external

customers in the PRC.

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets analysed by the geographical area in which

the assets are located:

8. EESW-&

HWEBRH-&
AEBEzBmEMRERPEINGEES

UTAREEFMBEBEI M ZERDE
EZIREE D :

Carrying amounts of

non-current assets

ERBEEZ
AR T (B
2015 2014
—2-HfF | —T—MNOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
Hong Kong BH 39 47
PRC B 37,131 810,858
37,170 810,905
Information about major customers AFREEERZCEH

For the year ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, no single

customers contributed 10% or more to the Group's revenue.

Revenue from major products
The Group’s revenue from its major products were stated in

Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

BE-Z-—HER-ZE-NE=A=+—
BLEEE #MEE-ZFUAEE WG
BEI0%E L Lo

FEERZHE
AEEIFEERZBBEETNES TR
RMIFES ©

ERSEERERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE=ZE—HF=A=1+—HILFE

9. TURNOVER 9.
The Group’s turnover represents the net invoiced value of
goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts.

The turnover is as follows:

BEXE
AEBNEXEBRLCNBRRERI ST
HNBEFEENEEERERFE X[
T

2015 2014
—E—RF —E—MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Retail of pharmaceutical and ZEnRHBERZSE

related products 220,762 238,100

Wholesale and distribution of EZEnRHEERMERDHE
pharmaceutical and related products 1,346,925 1,858,355
1,567,687 2,096,455

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=Z—RF=A=1+—HIFE

10. OTHER REVENUE 10. Rt =2

2015 2014
—Z—-1¥ —E-MEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FiERT
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZFE WA 1,131 695

Realised gain on financial assets EBBERUATEFEZ
at fair value through profit or loss MR EECER KNGS - 44
Rental income AW A 2,511 2,373
Exhibition income BEgUWA 1 2,816
Sundry income LSRN 2,736 1,615
6,379 7,543

11.

OTHER (LOSS)/GAIN, NET

1. Hfth (5518) e B8

2015 2014
—E—RF —E-MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FExT
Reversal of impairment loss of EZRHEMEKRRIEZ
trade and other receivables BEEEEE 130 746
Change in fair value of REWECZAFEEH
investment properties (252) -
(122) 746
ERSEREERATR 147
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE=Z—RF=A=1+—HILFE

12. (LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

The Group's (loss)/profit from operations is arrived at after

148

12. BEEBE (BE) &%
AEBSEEBE S (FIE) R EN

charging: MRTIIEEBER:
2015 2014
—B-HifF | —T—MmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FiET
Staff costs: BEITER:
Employee benefits expense (including EEWRBEX (BEREESHE
directors’ emoluments (Note 14)): (HFEE14)):
Salaries and allowance e RERM 63,470 54,542
Pension scheme contributions BRINSFHEIER 7,808 6,128
71,278 60,670
Other items: HMtEA :
Depreciation of owned property, FEEYE BERRZRERTE
plant and equipment (Note 20) (KtzE20) 5,085 3,653
Amortisation of prepaid lease FEAEERE#E (HaE21)
payments (Note 21) 188 188
Auditors’ remuneration e R &
— audit services —BZRB 850 850
- non-audit services —EEZRB - 2,169
Cost of inventories sold EEFEERAE 1,407,842 1,906,991
Impairment loss on goodwill (Note 23) EEREEE (ME23) 785,169 =
Loss on disposal of property, HENE - BRERREZER
plant and equipment 80 26
Provision for impairment loss of B REMEKRREZ
trade and other receivables WEEBERE 3,961 518
Operating lease rentals in respect of BT REFoLEHERS
land and building 25,437 18,380

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31
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March 2015 B2 =—ZE—FHFE=A=+—HIFE

13. FINANCE COSTS 13. BB EHA
2015 2014
—ZE—-1F —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Interest on: UTIEEZFE:

- Bank borrowings wholly - EREFABHEEZ

repayable within five years RITIEE 8,819 6,015

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

14.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, the aggregate amounts of emoluments paid by

the companies now comprising the Group to the directors of

the Company during the reporting period are as follows:

EFEHH
RIELTRAUREE D THEG REARK
EEZ RS ARBEBEIATFAL
AEFZHFMAEMT :

2015 2014

—ZE—1F —E—mF

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#ExT T T

Fees we 315 535

Other emoluments: H AN < -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RBEREYRNZR 319 105

Provident fund contributions NEESHER 14 23

Total s 648 663
ERSEREERATR 149
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE=E—AF=A=1+—HILLFE
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14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS - continued 14. EREFHM -
Details for the emoluments of each director of the Company AAREESERBRENBE2HFHMFEREN
during the reporting period are as follows: T s
Salaries,
allowances and Provident fund Total
Fees benefits in kind contributions remuneration
Fe 2MR
e Bhia LEEER A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TET
For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HEZZ—1f
ZA=t+-HLEEE
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Weng Jiaxing (Note (a)) HME K ( l‘ﬁﬁ(a)) - 234 1 245
Mr. Chen Yong (Note (b)) BB %4 (MED) - - - -
M. Yung Ka Chun (Note (c)) FEELE( Fﬁ:f( - 57 3 60
Mr. Chen Jinshan (Note (d)) BE W LE (HEE ) - 28 - 28
Mr. Shum Ngai Pan (Note (e)) MBIz L (M) - - - -
Independent non-executive directors:  BUFHTEE:
Mr. Liang Yichi (Note (f)) 2 & (M) 75 - - 75
Dr. Liu Yongping (Note (h)) ZBTLEL (K& () 120 - - 120
Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Note (i) EEGRLE (HE0) 120 - - 120
315 319 14 648
Salaries,
allowances and Provident fund Total
Fees benefits in kind contributions remuneration
e ERR
ne ENFG ARESHF BHM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TER TET TEx
For the year ended 31 March 2014 ~ BZ=-Z-QN#F
ZA=t-ALEE
Executive directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Weng Jiaxing (Note (a)) SMELEE (HF () 264 - 15 279
Mr. Chen Yong (Note (b)) BB L4 (M) = 105 8 113
Independent non-executive directors:  BUFHTEE:
Mr. Liang Yichi (Note (f)) R4 (HE(D) 75 - - 75
Mr. Zhu Donghai (Note (g)) RRBEE (HEE(9) 68 - - 68
Dr. Liu Yongping (Note (h)) ZBTLEL (K& () 1" - - "
Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Note (i)) BEBRE (HEG) 117 = = 117
535 105 23 663




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm © B 15 ¥R R B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS - continued

Notes:

(a)

Mr. Weng lJiaxing is the chief executive officer and was
appointed as executive director from 9 July 2012 and resigned
on 21 November 2014.

Mr. Chen Yong was appointed as executive director on 4
September 2012 and resigned on 10 October 2014. There is
no position of chief executive officer up to the date of the
report.

Mr. Yung Ka Chun was appointed as executive director on 10
October 2014 and resigned on 20 April 2015.

Mr. Chen Jinshan was appointed as executive director on 10
October 2014.

Mr. Shum Ngai Pan was appointed as executive director on 20
April 2015.

Mr. Liang Yichi was appointed as independent non-executive
directors on 4 September 2012.

Mr. Zhu Donghai was appointed as independent non-
executive directors on 4 September 2012 and resigned on 27
February 2014.

Dr. Liu Yongping was appointed as independent non-executive
directors on 27 February 2014.

Mr. Wong Hon Kit was appointed as independent non-
executive directors on 11 April 2013.

14. EFFHM &
FF&E -

(@) HMEELERBTHRAR INR=-F—=
FLANRBEZERHMITESAR=
E-mOE+-A=+—-—HEHE

(b)) MELER-Z-—-"FNANBEZEE
ARITESIR-_Z-—NFE+ATAHE
F-BEARESBHL UETHERZ
B AL o

0 BEBLRER-Z-DODE+A+AEE
ZEARYTES YR -_Z2-HFOA
—t+HEE-

(d BKRELEER=ZZ-NE+ATHEZ
FRETES-

() MBEZIR-ZF-AFHWA-+HE
ZERYTES-

() R-MEERZZ--FNANBEZ
EABIFHTES-

(9 KRRBEER-ZE--FhLhANHEEE
ERBIFHTES YR -_F—NF
ZA=ttBHEME-

(hy BEFETIR-Z-WME-_A=-++tH
EZEABIFHTES

iy EEHRER-Z-=5DTA+-HE
ZEERBIUFHTES-
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE=Z—RF=A=1+—HILFE

15.

EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS

Senior management emoluments and five highest
paid employees

The five highest paid individuals during the year included
1 director (2014: 1). The detail of the emoluments of the
remaining 4 (2014: 4) highest paid individuals are as follows:

15.

& S EH &

ERETEARHERIBESHES

FREEBRSHEEEE -2 (220
F:-REF-HKTHE(ZF-TF:
ME)2BEHEEZHMEFBUOT

2015 2014

—E—1Lf —E-—OF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#T FET

Salaries and other emoluments HeREAMEE 1,309 1,433
Retirement scheme contributions BRBERGFTEHX 51 49
1,360 1,482

The number of these non-director, highest paid employees

ZEFES REFEENFMHNFUT

whose remuneration fell within the following band is as HE:
follows:
2015 2014
—Z—RF —E-MF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0Z 1,000,000 Jt 4 4

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

15. EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS - continued 15. BRBM& -8
Senior management emoluments and five highest EREEARHMEREIEREHFER
paid employees - continued — 8
The emoluments of the senior management (excluding ARATEREERE (FTEEES) N H M
directors) of the Company are within the following band. NFUTEE-
2015 2014
—E—1F —E—mF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0%1,000,000% Jt 6 6
During the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, no BE_Z-—HFR-Z-—NF=R=+-—
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or any ALEE AEEYEQESHEATESR
of the five highest paid employees as an inducement to BeHEEXAHBM  UERR S| AR
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss EEIRMBENERE SERBEBE
of office. None of the directors or any of the five highest EB-RREHR BBRESREAEEE
paid employees waived or agreed to waive any emoluments SHEEERERDERETMAHE (==
during the reporting period (2014: Nil). —HE &) o
16. TAXATION 16. MIA
2015 2014
“2—-1fF | ZE2—@NOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FiERT
Current tax for the year FRENEABIE
— PRC enterprise income tax —FEEEREH 7,828 22,389
— PRC withholding tax paid - EfNHPEENH - 2,383
7,828 24,772
Under provision in prior year BEFEBRETRE
— PRC enterprise income tax —HEIEEFRBH 122 341
7,950 25,113
BERREERAFRAR 153
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE=Z—RF=A=1+—HILFE

16. TAXATION - continued 16. RIE— &

154

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising or derived from the jurisdictions in which

members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
during the year as the Group has no assessable profits

arising in Hong Kong (2014: Nil).

The National People’s Congress which was concluded on
16 March 2007, the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law was
approved and became effective from 1 January 2008. The
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law introduces a wide range of
changes which include, but are not limited to, the unification
of the income tax rates for domestic-invested and foreign-

invested enterprises at 25%.

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, starting
from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding income tax will
be imposed on dividend relating to profits earned by the
companies established in the PRC in the calendar year
2008 onwards to their foreign shareholders. For investors
incorporated in Hong Kong which hold at least 25% of
equity interest of those PRC companies, a preferential rate of
5% will be applied. The Group has applied the preferential
rate of 5% as the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are directly
held by an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong. No deferred tax has been provided for in respect
of the temporary differences attributable to such profits as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to
(loss)/profit before taxation using the statutory rate for
the location in which the Company and its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate are as

follows:

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

)
#n

16. TAXATION - continued 16. RIA — &
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE_Z—HAF=-A=+—HL=EE
The PRC Hong Kong Total
FE B i
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TET % TET % TiEgx %
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREAET/ (58) 24,035 (789,365) (765,330)
Tax at the statutory tax rate REERETERE 6,009 25.0 (130,246) 16.5 (124,237) 16.2
Tax effect of income not taxable and BEARHMARFANHK
expenses not deductible for tax purpose Rxmbigye 1,308 5.4 129,553 (16.4) 130,861 (17.1)
Tax effect of under-provision RETENKEYE 122 0.5 - - 122 -
Tax loss not recognised REANHBEHE 511 21 693 (0.1) 1,204 (0.1)
Tax charge for the year ERREXH 7,950 33.0 - - 7,950 (1.0)
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE-_Z-—NF=A=+—HLEFE
The PRC Hong Kong Total
HE BB @it
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
THn % TR % S %
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREAET/ (58) 89,914 (15,733) 74,181
Tax at the statutory tax rate REERETERE 22,479 25.0 (2,59) 16.5 19,883 26.8
Tax effect of income not taxable and BERRMARTTNH
expenses not deductible for tax purpose B MBI K2 (90) 0.1 830 (53) 740 1.0
Under provision in prior year BREFERETR 341 0.4 - - 341 05
PRC withholding tax refund REVEFENH = = 2,383 (15.1) 2,383 32
Tax loss not recognised REANHBEHE - - 1,766 (11.2) 1,766 24
Tax charge for the year FRREZ M 22,730 25.5 2,383 (15.1) 25,113 339

17.

LOSS OF THE COMPANY

The loss for the year dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company amounted to HK$ 3,323,000 (2014:

HK$8,355,000).

17. EFER
EXARBUBEREREENFEFEEES
3,323,000/8 5t (=& — £ : 8,355,000

BIT) °

ERSEERERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 @2 =E—AF=A=+—HILLFE

18. DIVIDENDS 18. BB R
The directors of the Company do not recommend the AARESTEZERBE_ZE—RF=
payment of any dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 B=+—HBLEENEARE (=ZZF—XO
(2014: Nil). FME)o
19. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 19. F AT HBEAEGEK (BE)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE et
COMPANY
2015 2014
—ZE—hF —E—OF
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FH&T
(Loss)/earnings (E51|) 87
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of AATESAEWS (BE)
the Company for the purpose of wmA (AU ESRER
basic (loss)/earnings per share calculation (|8’) BA) (772,949) 48,920
2015 2014
—E—1Lf —E—OF
Number of shares & H
Weighted average number of shares MEFHRE (BUFE
for the purpose of basic (loss)/ BREXR (FEB) BAR)
earnings per share 648,405,300 648,405,300

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based
on the loss attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2014 was on the assumptions that
the proposed 648,405,300 ordinary shares on the Stock
Exchange as described in the sub-section headed “Written
resolutions of the sole shareholder dated 24 September
2013"
Information”

under the section headed “Statutory and General
in Appendix VI to the prospectus of the
Company dated 30 September 2013, as if the shares were

outstanding throughout the year ended 31 March 2014.

Diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings
per share as there were no potential diluted ordinary share in
existence for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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—E-NF=A=t—HLEFEZERAT
EEAEGEEBRIBEAATEHA =
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FARAZTHAZKE-—REEEREER]
— BR B aift 2 T B 32 Pt 2 #7% 648,405,300
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

20 R -BmERR W

Leasehold Office Motor
improvement equipment vehicle Total
HEDRKE WOERMR RE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Cost (5783
As at 1 April 2013 R-ZZ-=FMA—-A 3,828 15,311 2,724 21,863
Additions "B 2,177 2,616 470 5,263
Disposal HE (384) (551) (286) (1,221)
Exchange realignment R AE 86 332 58 476
As at 31 March 2014 and R-E-ME=A=+-H
1 April 2014 R=E-mFEMB—A 5,707 17,708 2,966 26,381
Additions nE 5,264 7,948 1,860 15,072
Acquisitions through business BREXBAHZUWE
combinations - 68 - 68
Disposal HE - (881) (319) (1,200)
Exchange realignment EHBE 54 130 23 207
As at 31 March 2015 RZE-REF£=RA=1+-H 11,025 24,973 4,530 40,528
Accumulated depreciation RitE
As at 1 April 2013 R-ZZ-=FMA-A 1,990 7,948 999 10,937
Charge for the year FREMBR 1,022 2,178 453 3,653
Disposal HE (384) (475) (192) (1,051)
Exchange realignment EHRE 51 195 27 273
As at 31 March 2014 and R-E-ME=A=+-H
April 2014 R-Z-mFEMAB—A 2,679 9,846 1,287 13,812
Charge for the year FREMER 1,702 2,683 700 5,085
Disposal HE - (795) (201) (996)
Exchange realignment ERTESE 24 70 11 105
As at 31 March 2015 R-B2-1F¥=A=+-H 4,405 11,804 1,797 18,006
Net book value BESE
As at 31 March 2015 AZ2-HF=A=1—-H 6,620 13,169 2,733 22,522
As at 31 March 2014 R=Z-WE=A=1+—-H 3,028 7,862 1,679 12,569
ERKEZERARLTE
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 @2 =E—AF=A=+—HILLFE

21. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 21. EAHEERR
2015 2014
—EZE—-I1F —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET Fi& T
Leasehold land in the PRC: REFEE 1 i

— Medium-term lease —FHEIEE 4,530 4,697

Analysed for reporting purpose as: DMIEZFHAE:
— Current assets (Note 25) -REEE (M&E25) 188 188
— Non-current assets - ERBEE 4,342 4,509
4,530 4,697

As at 31 March 2015, the amount of approximately
HK$1,909,000 (2014: HK$1,979,000) are pledged as
collaterals for Group’s bank borrowings, details please refer
Note 43.

The Group's prepaid lease payments amounts represent
the payments for land use rights situated in the PRC. The
leasehold lands have lease term of 35 years and the Group
has processed the land use rights of the leasehold land

during the lease term.

Amortisation on prepaid lease payments of approximately
HK$188,000 (2014: approximately HK$188,000) have been
charged to the administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014 respectively.

158 WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

RZZ—RF=A=+—H"%1,909,000
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 22. BBEYR
2015 2014
-k 2 —E-MEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET TET
Completed investment properties ERIREME 8,093 8,306
At fair value BOAFE

At beginning of the year RERD 8,306 8,157
Exchange realignment & A 39 149
Fair value change N EEH (252) =
At end of the year RER 8,093 8,306

Note: 5T

The investment property with net book approximately HK$
8,093,000 as at 31 March 2015 (2014: HK$8,306,000) is pledged as
collaterals for the Group’s bank borrowings, please refer to Note 43.

(a)

Valuation of investment properties

The investment properties amounted of approximately
HK$8,093,000 of the Group were stated at fair value
as at 31 March 2015 (2014: HK$8,306,000). The fair
value were arrived at based on the valuations carried
out by an independent firm of qualified professional
valuers, Asset Appraisals Limited, (“AAL"), who have
among their staff members of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and
category of the properties being values. The valuations
conform to the Valuation Standards published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The completed
investment property has been valued using the direct

comparison approach.

REZB-AFZA=Z+-—H REVEREDF
{E498,093,000/% 7T (=& — M 4 : 8,306,000

B T)

CERFEAEERTEEZERR 5

EEEL G ELEN

(a)

BREMEZMEE
R-—Z-—RF=A=+—-H &K%
[E#98,093,000/8 7T (= F — N4 :
8,306,000 T) 2 REWER AT
BIRE- AFEDRBEABILEE
BEEMEMPHEEETERERM
BRAAE (TAALD) FrEEEMmE
EoETAMEENAMIBERS
BAEMEEES WHETHE
MEZNBEREHNERTHGHERZ
B-ERLERSEEBIEMES
HIRZEEER -BERBENE
FERAEELBAETEE

ERSEERERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued
(a) Valuation of investment properties
- continued
The direct comparison approach is adopted where
comparison based on prices information of comparable

properties is made.

There had been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year. In estimating the fair

value of the properties, the highest and best use of the

22. REME-—E

(a) BMBEMRZMHE-—&

ERIMRIBETERIENERER
EITERZBEELBUL

I8 1 F BE A 5k P O i (B0 I 48 3%
EEMEE  RNETUENRIFE
B YMENESERREERRHEE

properties is their current use. AR -
(b) The analysis of the carrying amount of investment (b) BEMEZIEEESIHMT:
properties is as follows:
2015 2014
—Z—-1¥ —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Land located in PRC: AR i
Medium-term lease FHEFR A 8,093 8,306

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued 22. BEYE-&

(c) Details of the Group’s investment properties (c) R-ES—HEFER_ZT—MNME=H
and information about the fair value Et+—H FREKIVERD
hierarchy as at 31 March 2015 and 2014 are FEHEREHERDT:
as follows:

Fair value
as at 31 March
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2015
R-ZE-1%
ZAZ+—-HZ
1#% 24k 3k LFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET F#ET FT#ET
Investment property unit NRFEZRENEEN
located in PRC - 8,093 - 8,093
Fair value
as at 31 March
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2014
RZZ-—NF
ZA=t-RH2
14 2 3 DYE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART FTiEr TER TAERT
Investment property unit NRPEZRENEEN
located in PRC - 8,306 - 8,306
There were no transfers into or out of level 3 during BE-Z—IHfK-E-—NF=A
the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014. E+—BLEFER SRLE|EME
AREH o
BEERERBRERAR 161
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE2=Z—RF=A=1+—HILFE

22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

(d)

Investment properties leased out under

operating leases

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating lease to earn rentals are measured using
the fair value model and classified accounted for

investment properties.

The Group leases out its investment properties which is
a shop unit of a 9-storey composite building to various
tenants. The lease typically run for an initial period of
1 year to 5 years, at the end of which all terms are
renegotiable. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals. The rental income generated from investment
properties is approximately HK$321,000 (2014:
HK$450,000). There were no direct operation expenses
arising from investment properties for the year ended
31 March 2015 and 2014.

The properties held had committed tenants for the 3.4
years (2014: 1.5 years). At the end of the reporting
period, the Group contracted with tenants for the

following future minimum lease receivables:

22. EYME-—&E
(d) BEESHEHEAZREINE

AEEMAERBELHESBUR
WEERANERSZIIRA DT
BERAFE XDBEEREVEA
iR o

AEEOZEHFHEERENE
(A—EBIBEBSRERKEZHEMHE
) MY —RAOST A —FER
FoHRRENEEMEMRA A
HNTBREIABS - REREYE
ZHALSWALNEHE321,0008T (=ZF
— U4 1 450,000 L)  BE_-Z
—HEFER-_ZE-NF=A=+—H
LEE REVEMBELEREER
g

FiBAZURERRIAF (=F
—HESF)EFEREEAEZH
F -RAHREHR - AEECEAS
IR AR E zREEESOT

2015 2014

—2—-5F —Z-MmF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET THExT

Within one year —FR 226 300
In the second to the fifth years F_ZRF (BREEREWE)

inclusive 462 54

688 354

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

23. GOODWILL 23. &8
2015 2014
—B—-1F —E-MEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET TET
Cost 2% 3
As at 1 April HMA—H 785,521 785,521
Additional amount recognised from NAFEELEHEBESH
business combinations occurring FriE R 2 BASNFRIE (B RE27)
during the year (Note 27) 1,852 -
Exchange realignment B N A 9 -
As as 31 March R=B=+—H 787,382 785,521
Accumulated impairment losses RiBEGE
As at 1 April HMA—H - =
Impairment losses recognised in the year REAFERRAZRERSE 785,169 =
As as 31 March R=A=+—8 785,169 -
Carrying value REE
As at 31 March R=B=+—H 2,213 785,521
BERREZERAFRAR 163
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

23. GOODWILL - continued 23. 8-\
Impairment Tests for Cash-generating Units EFREZHeELEARENR
Containing Goodwiill
The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more AEBESFET ABERENR IR
frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be EFSBETHEURESBEREMRE
impaired. I HE AT R EDRIE ©
For impairment testing purpose and before recognition of FORERIE T S RRERREEIER 2
impairment losses, the carrying amount of goodwill was BRFREEASENCEHEREENT

allocated to CGU as follows:

2015 2014
—Z—-1fF —E-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THExT
Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries RERHEKB AR
— retail, wholesales and distribution - ZE - MBLRIOHEERR
of pharmaceutical and related HBEE®
products 785,169 785,169
Quanzhou Huihao RINE
— retail of pharmaceutical and - ZEEEREHEEER
related products 361 352
Xiamen Huihao BB
— wholesales and distribution of —-HERIFEADREBER
pharmaceutical and related products 1,852 -
787,382 785,521
164 WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

23. GOODWILL - continued

Impairment Tests for Cash-generating Units

Containing Goodwill - continued
Note:

Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 March 2015, as a result of the
promulgation and implementation of the new Good Supply
Practice in Fujian, the PRC which imposes stringent regulations
on pharmaceutical distributor operation and causes significant
decrease in pharmaceutical wholesales business of Nurture Fit and
its subsidiaries. According to subsequent publications of relevant
government policies in effect, only 10 medicine distributors
remained on the enterprise list and those unqualified distributors are
not qualified to supply pharmaceutical products to public hospitals
and healthcare institutions under new tenders commensurate with
the new Good Supply Practice. Majority of the existing distributor
customers of Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries, who are not on the
new Good Supply Practice qualified enterprise list, are expected to
walk out from the sector. As a result, the projected sale revenues
from the wholesale business are expected to tumble over the
projection period.

Also, due to the constraint of the existing direct sale distribution
facilities of the Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries where it is unable to
cater for all the public hospitals and public healthcare institutions
over the whole Fujian Province, the Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries is
expected to take up only part of the market shares on distribution
sale business which are covered by those existing distributor
customers. As a result, there shall be dropped in the overall market
share of the Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries over the wholesale and
distribution segment.

. R -\

EFHEBZREES B ER
— i
EE

GERAEMEBLR

BE-Z-—AF=FA=1+—HLFE BARH
HEEZEEMRERTESEERE L5
mMOEBERRNBEREELERRERE
MBLAR2ERYUBAERRNBRD - RIFCE
M HATSHEBBNERE CXEBELER
BIOHEYSHEE MIAFEER 2D HEE
BERNAENEEEERB2HMRBEATE
AVBERENEERBRNER  WIFRIHE
BEERGAERLXEBECRERANE
RAZKZHREEFERBREZITE-H
Lt FEHA R TE R HA R Sz R B HE B 33K 2 TR
HEWAEREK -

o AREERAMBARCREEEHEE
DERIERT  CHEZRNEZRBEEAZMEA
RUBRERALBEEBZER RBEER
HNNB QRS EREZSREA D HEEF &
BECoHEEXRBE MO SHE Bt &
ERENBRAARMBERDHEI R 2 ERBT S
DESBERT Bk
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 @2 =E—AF=A=+—HILLFE

23. GOODWILL - continued

Impairment Tests for Cash-generating Units

Containing Goodwill - continued
Note :- continued

Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries - continued

The recoverable amount of this cash generating unit (“CGU") is
determined based on a value in use calculation which uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and with discount rates of 11.95% per
annum. Cash flow projections during the budgeted period are based
on the same expected gross margins throughout the budget period.
The management considers that it is prudent and appropriate to
adopt a steady 8% annual growth rate of cash flows projections
for each flows beyond the budgeted period. This growth rate does
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the market.
Management determined the budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations for the market development.

As the carrying of this CGU is lower than the recoverable amount,
impairment losses of approximately HK$785,169,000 was
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Quanzhou Huihao

The recoverable amount of this cash generating unit ("CGU") is
determined based on a value in use calculation which uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and with discount rates of 11.95% per
annum. Cash flow projections during the budgeted period are based
on the same expected gross margins throughout the budget period.
The management considers that it is prudent and appropriate to
adopt a steady 8% annual growth rate of cash flows projections
for each flows beyond the budgeted period. This growth rate does
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the market.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the
key assumptions on which recoverable amount is based would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this CGU. Management determined
the budgeted gross margin based on past performance and its
expectations for the market development.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EFHEBCHeEL EARERR
— &
MisE: —

GEREMBAR-&

HREEEEMV (REEEEN]) 2T KHE
THELBREBEEREEHEEE MEAEER
BEEEMtECREAFHUBAERSH
ZHREREBFAR URERESF11.95%"
E-AEHMR2REREER  DEREEE
ERRERzRAERNRFE-EEERS
RAREHERRERBCREFERR%HE
ENBEEREE WERERAUTHBAT S Z
R PHORRE - EEERBBEIRARAY
THRRCENEEREERN X

HRZASELENCREEERTRE S
B 4 %785,169,0008 T 2 MEBEILTRN
BE-Z-AF=A=T-BLEFEAER

RMES
WReEABEN ((ReEEEN]) 2T KE
SHNBREBEEREEFEEE mMEABER
BEREEMMEZRERFHMEREEMRSEH
Zﬁ%mui?ﬁifﬁﬂ AR EZF11.95%5
E-AEHRZRSRETERN DENRE@EE
;ﬁﬁ@*ﬁﬂzﬁ;ﬂﬂ%*' EHE-EEERR
RWEERRRERECRBREFIERES%MHE
ENBEEREE MEREIAEBHIEZ
RATHERE-EBEEME HETKE S
BB ZETEBRAIEER2AENERES
B T\égﬁzﬁtiﬁéFi Sy 2 REAERS
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

23. GOODWILL - continued

Xiamen Huihao

The recoverable amount of this cash generating unit
("CGU") is determined based on a value in use calculation
which uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period and
with discount rates of 11.95% per annum. Cash flow
projections during the budgeted period are based on the
same expected gross margins throughout the budget
period. The management considers that it is prudent and
appropriate to adopt a steady 8% annual growth rate of
cash flows projections for each flows beyond the budgeted
period. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term

average growth rate for the market.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in the other key assumptions on which recoverable amount
is based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of this CGU.
Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations for the market

development.

23. e 1A

BFEF

hWREeEEEN ([BeELEN]) 2T
WESENREFERAEBENERE  ME
FAEEREEEEMALEZRERLFH
MEEEFRSH2BSRETEA  URE
BEBFN5% TE-HEHRZRE
RETER DEREEEEHRERZTE
BAEFEAE - BEEERL RMNEEB
BEESRECEEFERRESUELETE
FEERBEE UEREITBBMEZR
HFHIBR R

ERERE SAETRESERREZH
ERBRAEHREZAMSELE £
SEPURTELEUCRALERSD
HuWEHAE EEEREBERR
REHT SRR ENEEEEERR

ERSEERERAR
2014/2015 F 5§
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

24. INVENTORIES

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial

position comprises:

2. 8

REEUBRRR2FERHE:

2015 2014

—Z—hF —E—OF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET F& T

Finished goods SR 124,849 128,541

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

25. RAREMBERREARESR

DEPOSITS
The Group The Company
*5E 3|

2015 2014 2015 2014
ZE-1f —E-NF —Z-I1%f —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR THT TEx
Trade receivables g5 EWFE 282,077 271,763 - -
Bills receivables EREE 6,229 7,748 - =
Prepayments and deposit paid BARERENES 121,230 127,116 13 113
Prepaid lease payments (Note 21) BARERE (Ka21) 188 188 - S
Other receivables Hith B W IR 19,988 22,321 - =
429,712 429,136 113 113

Less: Impairment loss recognised in & : St E B FERE MY
respect of other receivables REEE (1,026) (1,152) 113 =
428,686 427,984 113 113

As at 31 March 2015, bills receivable of approximately
HK$6,229,000 (2014:HK$7,748,000) will be matured within
six months after the end of the reporting period. All the bills

receivable are denominated in RMB.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

R-ZZE-—RAF=ZA=1+—H0 BEKREEY
6,229,000/ 7T (=& — M4 : 7,748,000
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 25. RS RAMBHRRARZS
DEPOSITS - continued —#&
Included in the Groups other receivables was the RZE-—FHEF=A=+—H st ALK
value added tax (“VAT") recoverable of approximately B H b fE W SR IE 2 BT W B G E B ([
HK$8,171,000 as at 31 March 2015 (2014: HK$9,750,000). BEF)#8,171,0008 T (= F — M F:

9,750,000/ 7T ) °
Payment terms with customers from the pharmaceutical

wholesale and distribution business and pharmaceutical EaHBERIEERUREGETEEH
retail chain business are mainly on credit. Invoices are EEBREFHNRAIXEERTEREKA
normally payable from 30 to 90 days of issuance. The ME-—RENREZZEHHHE30E0HRX
following is an aged analysis of trade receivables based T UTARBERREZEZANNES
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period as FEWFRIEN R DT
follows:
2015 2014
—2—-5F —E-IEF
HK$000 HK$’000
THET FiET
Within 90 days 90H KA 213,845 223,387
91 - 180 days 91£180H 50,607 27,562
181 — 365 days 181£365H 17,593 15,439
Over 365 days HiB365H 5,222 6,711
287,267 273,099
Less: Impairment loss recognised WME S ERRIERERN
in respect of trade receivables REEE (5,190) (1,336)
282,077 271,763
BESEERARAR 169
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE2=Z—RF=A=1+—HILFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

DEPOSITS - continued

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default. Trade receivables that were
past due at the end of the reporting period but the Group
has not recognised an allowance for doubtful debts because
there are no significant change in credit quality and the
amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances nor does it have a legal right of offset against
any amounts owed by the Group to the counterparty. The
individually impaired receivables related to customers that
were in financial difficulties and the Directors assessed that

the amounts are not expected to be recovered.

25. RS RAMBERRERZES

— iR

WEBH T EREE S ERREAETE
REWBITHHENTCEZEFER -E5
FEURERREH R B EREEL
BERARRERE REARERENGEE
BRUESAEHANERAT FIRE -
AEBETEFRLSEHRTETMERR
FHEMEEMERIRE - IR EEER-ER AL
AEBERRZH FOEAFTAELRSE -
18 B R 16 BY FE WK TR 3 I B Bt 3 IR 2 Y
EF EENFERETZESETRER
[ o

Ageing of impaired trade receivables ERERSERRAZIER
2015 2014
“2—-1fF | —E2—@NOF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FET
Over 365 days HiB365H 5,190 1,336

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
DEPOSITS - continued

25. RAREMBERRARES

Ageing of past due but not impaired =¥ R RERCE F-41:00 ]
2015 2014
“B—-1f | —E2—@NOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FTERT

Overdue by: 2EE:

1 =90 days 1£90H 50,607 27,562
91 - 180 days 91£180H 17,593 15,439
Over 180 days HiB180H 32 5,375
68,232 48,376

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balances are
balances with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$68,232,000 (2014:HK$48,376,000) which was past due
at the end of the reporting period for which the Group not

provided for impairment loss.

FAAREBEZEBRBLESRT ZER
#EEX68,232,0008B L (ZFE—M&F:
48,376,00078 7T ) A R A3 & HA R 2 B i
ZES AEBYEREFRBESSR-

ERSEERERAR
2014/2015 F 5§
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 25.

DEPOSITS - continued
Movement in the provision for impairment loss
recognised in respect of trade receivables is

summarised as follows:

HAREMELRARES®
— iR

Tk 52 50 R My ok O 5 o M S R I O
SEEEmT

2015 2014

—ZE—1Lf —E—OF

HK$'000 HK$’000

FERT THExT

Balance at beginning of the year RE 2 &8k 1,336 1,437
Impairment losses recognised ERAZRERIE 3,961 518
Impairment losses reversed RAEE B E (130) (645)
Exchange realignment & o PR 23 26
Balance at end of the year RERZ &8 5,190 1,336

Included in allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
HK$5,190,000 (2014: HK$1,336,000). For overdue debts,
based on the past default experience, payment history of
customers and subsequent settlement, the Group assessed
the corporate customers for potential impairment losses.
Full provision has been made for individual trade receivables
aged over one year with no subsequent settlement as
historical evidence shows that such amounts are not

recoverable.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

RERERTAERREZE S ERER
M2 B EEER A5,190,0008 T (= F— 1
% 11,336,000 T) BB EHEMS
FEERBBIHENRBEZER BF
RREHERAEBEETIMEERTFZE
EREFE RNAFCARRER—F2
HeETHREE @R E S RBERRIEL
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
DEPOSITS - continued

Movement in the provision for impairment loss

25. RAREMBERRARES

R 5 it FE Ay 0 O 52 oz A 5 [ £ S

of the Group recognised in respect of other RBRBDEEMT -
receivables is summarised as follows:
2015 2014
—ZE—1Lf —E—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FET
Balance at beginning of the year RE 2 &8k 1,152 1,232
Impairment losses recognised ERAZRERIE - =
Impairment losses reversed RAEE B E - (101)
Exchange realignment fE R (126) 21
Balance at end of the year RERZ &8 1,026 1,152
26. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 26. RIMBATFIZHRE
The Company
b /N |
2015 2014
—E—1fF —E-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Unlisted share, at cost RETRG  BEK 6,484 6,484
EERERERBRAR

2014/2015 F 3R
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are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2015 are as

26. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
7t ¥ ¥R 2% Bif 5

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

26. PMIBARIZRE 18
R-ZE—RAF=B=1+—H XA{FzE
EME AR (HABRAE)FBENOT

follows:
Place and date of Particulars of Percentage of equity,
incorporation/ issued and fully effective interest and
Name of registration capital Class of paid ordinary share/ voting power held
subsidiaries and operation share held registered capital by the Company Principal activities
BRAL/EREER BRGRHER FOERECHRE.
HELEEE EEHRREN FARRAWH HEREEZHER RREGRRREZILA TERH
Direct Indirect
Ef &
2015 2014 2015 2014
ZE-IF(CE-mE|Z8-1F | CE-OF
% % % %
Luxuriant Expand Global British Virgin Island/ Ordinary US$100/US$50,000 100 100 - - Investment holding
Investments Limited 10 April 2012
ENRRREARLT ZERZEE/ EER  100%7,/50,000%% REER
ZE-ZEMATH
Timely Hero Enterprises British Virgin Island/ Ordinary US$1/US$50,000 - - 100 100 Investment holding
Limited 1 December 2006
KELEFRAR ABRLEE/ EBR 1%78,/50,000% 10 REZR
“EZRETZA-H
Nurture Fit Limited British Virgin Island/ Ordinary US$1/US$50,000 - - 100 100 Investment holding
16 July 2009
REARAH EBRLEE/ EER 1%78,/50,000% 10 REZR
“EEAFELATRA
Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited Hong Kong/ Ordinary HK$1,000,000 - - 100 100 Investment holding
("Huihao Hong Kong") 1 March 2004
B (BB BEEE EE/ EER 1,000,000 REER
ARAR ((EFEE] ZEIMEZR-A
Fujian Huihao Sihai The PRC/ Registered RMB15,856,350 - - 99.29 99.29 Pharmaceutical retail chain
Pharmaceutical Chain 30 November 2001 business in the PRC
Company Limited
("Huihao Sihai*")
RREFNBREEHER HE/ ERER AR#15,856,3507C ROEERTEEHEXE
DR ([EHFMEH]) ZEZ-Ft-A=tH

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Place and date of
incorporation/

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI AL

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ==

Particulars of
issued and fully

26. RBARIZIRE — &

Percentage of equity,
effective interest and

—AF=A=1t—HILLFE

Name of registration capital Class of paid ordinary share/ voting power held
subsidiaries and operation share held registered capital by the Company Principal activities
BREL/ EREER BTREGEHER/ FRRREACEE.
G NGEL EEHRREN FARRARY HREFZHER RREGRRREZLA TERH
Direct Indirect
EE &
2015 2014 2015 2014
ZE-LF|Z3-PF|ZB-EF|ZE2-RF
% % % %

Fujian Province Fuzhou City The PRC/ Registered RMB60,000,000 - - 100 100 Pharmaceutical wholesale and
Huihao Pharmaceutical 9 July 2008 distribution business in the PRC
Co. Limited (“Fuzhou
Huihao®")

BRABNTEHELER wE/ ZRER AR¥60,000,0007 ROEERHERDIHEES
DA ([RMEL ) “EZNELANA

Putian Huihao Medicine Co. The PRC/ Registered RMB10,000,000 - - 100 100 Pharmaceutical wholesale and
Limited (“Putian Huihao*") 11 July 2008 distribution business in the PRC

BEEHEFBRERAR wE/ ERER AK¥10,000,0007 ROEERHERDIHEES
([EEEF 1) “EZ\ELAT-H

Fujian Huiming Medicine Co. The PRC/ Registered RMB20,000,000 - - 100 100 Pharmaceutical wholesale and
Limited (“Fujian Hu\mmg ") 10 July 2008 distribution business in the PRC

hgéimgﬁﬁw wE/ ERER A&%20,000,0007 RABERRERDIHER
([EREeH 1) ZEZ\ELATH

Huihao Medicine (Quauzhou) The PRC/ Registered RMB10,000,000 - - 100 100 Pharmaceutical wholesale and
Co. Ltd* 17 May 2007 distribution business in the PRC

EREE (ZM)BRAR TE/ ERER AK%10,000,0007 ROEERHERIEEE

“ZZLERATLA

Huihao Pharmaceutical The PRC/ Registered RMB 10,880,000 - - 60 - Pharmaceutical wholesale and
(Xiamen) Company Limited* 22 January 2008 distribution business in the PRC

EREE (EM)ARAR TE/ ERER AK#10,880,0007C RABERRERIHER

ZEEN\F-BZtZH

Huihao Pharmaceutical The PRC/ Registered RMB 12,500,000 - - 60 - Pharmaceutical wholesale and
(Nanping) Company Limited? 18 April 1991 distribution business in the PRC

ERBE (BY)ERAR TE,/ ERER AR#12,500,0007 RYBERRERDIHER

-AA—EMmA+NA
3 The English names of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC & AABHEMBARZREEEEZF

are transliteration of their respective Chinese names have not

has been registered.

In addition, the directors of the Company made an
assessment as at the date of initial application of HKFRS 12
and at the end of the reporting period. In the opinion of the
directors, there is no subsidiary that have non-controlling
interest individually that are material to the Group and
therefore no information is disclosed for these non-wholly

owned subsidiaries.

NEBBFE2RX B AREM-

o ARARESECREREREBYH

4 ofE B 55

[=Ra s

£125% 2 H B R A &5 AR E

TG -ESRD BB B L BE 5 %
BHAEEMEBEANFEZRBRRE
w MU BENBEZSHEENBRARAZE

*il,o

ERSEERERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

26. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES - continued

27.

fm © B 15 ¥R R B 5E

Significant restrictions

Cash and short-term deposits of RMB held in the PRC are
subject to local exchange control regulations. These local
exchange control regulations provide for restrictions on

exporting capital from the PRC, other than through normal

dividends.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

26. RBARIZIRE — &

B KR H

RPBUARBFENRERERER
EABTEMERERRI -ZSEBE
SR BMRGIR P B 2 BN E AR RS
HEB - RBREBRERIN

27. I B B 2 F)

Proportion
Date of shares
Principal activity of acquisition acquired Consideration
ETEEH e % B A 1t B% B%: 17 L 51 K&
% HK$'000
FET
Xiamen Huihao Pharmaceutical wholesale 21 April 2014 60 6,204
(note a) and distribution business
in the PRC
EfMEL (MiFa) RAPEZERUMBERSEFEK —E-NF
WmA=+—H
Nanping Huihao Pharmaceutical wholesale 15 June 2014 60 9,417
(note b) and distribution business
in the PRC
MFEF (Hakb) RIPEZERMBERSEER —E-NF
NA+THHE
15,621
Note: B 5
(@) The name of Company has been changed from EFE R 5 (@) RUWBEEERE ZARZEWHAE

EERAF to BHFEHE (EM)BRAF after acquisition

completed.

N

(b)  The name of Company has been changed from BE & E & (b)
BEERANT to BHFEE (FF)ERAQA after acquisition

completed.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

27. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
- continued

Xiamen Huihao and Nanping Huihao were acquired so as
to continue the expansion of the Group’s pharmaceutical

wholesale and distribution business.

27. BB AT — &

WEEMEFLREFEFEEFEREXR
REBZHERUBER D HER-

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the REBEFRKGEESERMEBZA
date acquisition: 5
Xiamen Nanping
Huihao Huihao Total
ERERF EFER “it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TR TEx
Property, plant and equipment NE - BEREE = 68 68
Trade and other receivables B REMEWFE 5,365 29,652 35,017
Inventories FE 1,171 10,701 11,872
Cash and cash equivalents BENBEZEEER 4,863 5,685 10,548
Trade and other payables EFREMEMTE (4,147) (17,855) (22,002)
Bank Borrowings BITER - (12,556) (12,556)
Net assets BERE 7,252 15,695 22,947

The receivables acquired in these transactions with a fair
value of approximately HK$5,365,000 for Xiamen Huihao
and approximately HK$29,652,000 for Nanping Huihao
were approximate to their gross contractual amounts and no

balance was expected to be uncollectible.

REZEXZHPURBZLATENS
5,365,000 T (MEMEHFMT)RY
29,652,000 T (METEHEFMS) ZE
WHIBEEFE BN SERE B E
EERTEHAS A AT IR -

ERSEERERAR
2014/2015 F 3R
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

27. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
- continued

27.

W R B B 4 B — 48

Goodwill arising on acquisition: BEECHR:
Xiamen Nanping
Huihao Huihao Total
EMER BEEH it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER
Cash consideration transferred EE oHSRE 6,204 9,417 15,621
Plus: non-controlling interests m:EERER 2,900 6,278 9,178
Less: fair value of identifiable net assets acquired i : AR FINEE E
BEZATE (7,252) (15,695) (22,947)
Goodwill arising on acquisition BEEEZHE 1,852 - 1,852

The non-controlling interests in Xiamen Huihao and
Nanping Huihao recognised at the acquisition date was
measured by reference to the present ownership instruments
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of their

identifiable net assets.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

27. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

- continued

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Xiamen Huihao because
the cost of the combination included a control premium.
In addition, the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefits
of expected synergies, revenue growth, future market

development and the assembled workforce of Xiamen

27. BB AT — &

HREHRABFEEHEEE  HRBE
MEFEEEE - RBERGHAX
FzREREEEMEFNERHEN
B-WABR - RRTERERZEET
EFENANEEENEE ZZENETE
HHBLMARR BAZSNELTHE

Huihao. These benefits are not recognised separately from ARRBREECRBRELE
goodwill because they do not meet the recognition criteria
for identifiable intangible assets.
None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is BRERZEWBESHELECHEERER
expected to be deductible for tax purposes. RATOBRE X o
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries: KRB ARZRERHPBE:
Xiamen Nanping
Huihao Huihao Total
BRERF BFEH “t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TERT THET
Consideration paid in cash UREZMZRE 6,204 9,417 15,621
Less: cash and cash equivalent W RBESRCAER
balances acquired HeZE®EE (4,863) (5,685) (10,548)
Net cash outflow REREFHE 1,341 3,732 5,073
Impact of acquisitions on the results of the Group BEHAEEXRCEE

Turnover of HK$14,348,000 and loss of HK$1,630,000
contributed by Xiamen Huihao, turnover of HK$98,813,000
and profit of HK$738,000 contributed by Nanping Huihao
were recognised in the Group's loss for the year ended 31
March 2015.

EPIE i B Rt 2 & % %014,348,000 T
K &5181,630,0008 T M FBRIFERZ
& 2£%H98,813,0005% T & it Kl 738,000
TIRAEESBLE=_E—RAF=A=1+—
ALFEZBREPER

ERSEERERAR
2014/2015 F 3R
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

27. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

28.

- continued

27.

Impact of acquisitions on the results of the Group

- continued

Had these business combination be effective at 1 April 2014,

the turnover of the Group would have been approximately
HK$1,604,192,000, and the loss for the year would have
been approximately HK$773,366,000. The directors of the

Group consider these number to represent an approximate

measure of the performance of the combined group on

an annualised basis and to provide a reference point for

comparison in future period.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW

SUBSIDIARIES

28.

W R B B 4 B — 48

BRHARERBZCE &

WZEEBKEHER S —TNFN
BA—BER AEEZEEHENA
1,604,192,0008 T REEBEEN S
773,366,000 T AKBEERAZE
FFrRPASHEEZRRAZEEZHY
AERARRBBZLEBRMUSEESS-

BlREARMEARTRE
2015 2014
—Z—hF —E-MmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&x FET

Name of fellow subsidiaries

Edward Hospital Company Limited
Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital Company Limited

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

RRMEBLARERE

EREREBRAERLT
KEhEBKRABERRA A

3,763 2,956
4,858 =
8,621 2,956
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

28. EU A R E QT RIR - &

The maximum amounts due from fellow subsidiaries BHE-Z—HFR-Z—NF=A=1+—
outstanding during the years ended 31 March 2015 and HIEFE  EUREZEME A B AR U E
2014 are as follows: HNESSEMT:
2015 2014
—E—RF —E-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Name of fellow subsidiaries AREMELTEB
Edward Hospital Company Limited EEREEERARAA 3,763 2,956
Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital Company Limited — EkiEBhBEERER AT 4,858 =
The amounts due from fellow subsidiaries were unsecured, ERERHNBARAREAEKAE RER
interest-free and recoverable on demand. BREREER-
EERERERBRAR

2014/2015 F 3R

181



182

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm © B 15 ¥R R B 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2=ZE—RF=A=1+—HILFE

29. AMOUNT DUE FROM THE IMMEDIATE

29. BUEHERBRATIRE Bk

HOLDING COMPANY/AMOUNT DUE FROM —RME 2T REA
A SUBSIDIARY
The Group The Company
35E . 3/N |
2015 2014 2015 2014
21 | ZE-MF | Z8—-HF | ZE—MmF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET TET FTAET
Name of the immediate EERBRATRE
holding company
Greatly Wealth R 15 5 5 -
Name of the subsidiary MEBAFRE
Luxuriant Expand Global BRI - - 10 =

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

29. AMOUNT DUE FROM THE IMMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY/AMOUNT DUE FROM
A SUBSIDIARY - continued

The maximum outstanding balance of amount due from the
immediate holding company/amount due from a subsidiary

during the years ended 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

29. BUrEHERBRATIRE Bk

—MMEB2RRE—&

BE-Z-AFR-_ZT-HNFLFE E
WEEZERQRNIE R —EHEQ
AR ARUBMNES AT

The Group The Company
F5H b3/
2015 2014 2015 2014
“2-1f | Z2—WF | Z8-HF | ZE-OF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTER TERT TER
Name of the immediate EERROAFRE
holding company
Greatly Wealth RE 15 5 5 -
Name of the subsidiary MBATRE
Luxuriant Expand Global BRI - - 10 =

The amount due from the immediate holding company/
amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and

recoverable on demand.

FEWEEZERABDRIA R —EHE R
ARERBER RERAREREE-

ERSEERERAR
2014/2015 F 3R
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30. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 30. RAFEBABRKRIIIRZ &5t
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE

2015 2014

itk 2 —E-F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FlT 38 5T

Investment at fair value BAVEIEZ2ERE - 1,259

Fair value NEE - 1,259

As at 31 March 2014, the Group's investment in open-
end asset portfolio wealth management products were
designated at financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of which fair values are determined by reference to
the quoted market bid prices available on the relevant PRC

market. During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group

R-BE-NME=A=+—0 ANEENHA
RREEAGHEBEMERZRENEE
AREATEEBRERIIEC ERMEE H
AFEDSEFEEBEHSEIEZTE
HEEE REBEE=ZE—HE=A=+—
ALEE AEEEHEMFRAFESE

had disposed all of the financial assets at fair value through BEBIIKZEMERE-
profit or loss.
31. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 31. e RB&¢SEHHEARECHP
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS BITHER
The Group The Company
35HE b S/N |
2015 2014 2015 2014
—Z-hFE | —E—NE | Z8-1F | —F—MF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TET
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBESHEER 43,029 43,638 176 102

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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31. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS - continued

At as 31 March 2015, the cash at banks and in hand of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$39,237,000 (2014: approximately HK$34,835,000).
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on the
prevailing market rate which at 0.35% per annum during
the reporting period (2014: 0.35%). The cash and cash
equivalents are deposits with creditworthy banks with no

recent history of default.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
but conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorization to

conduct foreign exchange business.

Pledged bank deposits:

As at 31 March 2015, a bank deposit denominated in
RMB amounted to approximately HK$12,970,000 (2014:
approximately HK$17,431,000) were pledged as collateral
for bank borrowings and the effective interest rate on
pledged bank deposits is 2.4 % (2014:2.8%).

1. e RBeFERAREHA

RITER—&
RZE-—HF=A=+—H XEEU
ARBIIBZRTHEERFERESEGH#
#%39,237,0008 T (ZE—MF: ¥
34,835,000 7T) - RMEHHA R R1T
BERBITHEFFIZF0.35% LUFENFIZE
HMEAE (22 —MF:035%) - BHER
RE&ZEEBERANEFRARLEENTH
s B RIFZ8RITo

ARBAITEHABDSHEMER HAR
WHRBRBINETIAB T HE AR INE
ERRAINRGE EERVEEESRE
AEBEEEBERBEETIIEREDN
RITBAREZBRAEMER -

SEHER:

RZEBE-RE=ZA=+—0 LAR®75
EZRITERIEL12,970,0008T (ZF
— N :£917,431,00058 7T) T3 R iR 1T 16
EEHRERETRRRCERRITERZE
BAERE24% (ZE—WFE:28%) °

ERSEERERAR
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32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

32. RS RHEMEMRIEF

The Group The Company
*RE /|

2015 2014 2015 2014
—Z-RFE | —E—NF | ZB-RFE | —F—WNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET TET FTAET
Trade payables B 5 RENFIE 168,680 192,298 - =
Bills payables A EE 18,697 36,070 - =
Accruals and other payables &R REME[FE 37,419 31,763 1,278 2,577
Receipt in advance BUWRIE 17,321 22,949 - =
242,117 283,080 1,278 2,577

Included in accruals and other payables was the deposits

from customers of approximately HK$13,887,000 as at
March 2015 (2014: HK$16,117,000)

31

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the

R-ZE-—HF=A=+—H EE
AREMENRECERETFZR
£#13,887,0008 T (Z&E — & :
16,117,000 7T ) °

UTARBREMRZEZEBAKERR

end of the reporting period: palig
2015 2014
“2—-1F —E-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THExT
Within 90 days 90H KA 115,166 131,694
91 - 180 days 91£180H 21,154 15,492
181 — 365 days 181£365H 12,250 18,504
Over 365 days Hi@B365H 20,110 26,608
168,680 192,298

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

186




32.

33.

34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm © B 15 ¥R R B 53X

For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
- continued

The credit period on purchases of certain goods in range
from 30 to 90 days.

The bills payables are matured within six months from
the ended of the reporting period. And the bills payables
were secured by certain pledged bank deposits. All the bill

payables are denominated in RMB.

AMOUNT DUE TO THE ULTIMATE
HOLDING COMPANY
The Company and the Group

Amount due to the ultimate holding company is unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES/FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES/NON- CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY

The Company and the Group

Amounts due to subsidiaries/fellow subsidiaries/non-
controlling shareholders of a subsidiary are unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

32.

33.

34,

5 B H i BB 7 IR — 48

i

BEETERZEER N FI0E0H 2
EIEJ"

7

o

BNREBEREPRET BB REL -
BNREUE TERFRITERERE
Ho-ERNRBIEUARSTE

B REEZERLFRERA

FRFRFERE
BN&EAZERABDRERDERR REK
AEERER-

EARELTE RRHEELF
/—EREATZ R
ZHIA

FAFRFEE

EAWEAR RARMBLE — @K
BARZFERREZFHARBIER %
BERAZREREE-

ERSEERERAR
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35. BANK BORROWINGS 35. RITEE
The Group
F5HE
2015 2014
—E—1Lf —E2—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Bank borrowings — secured RITEE-—BIKF 121,454 88,088
2015 2014
—B-HifF | —T—@NmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET Fi& T
Carrying amount repayables: EEERESHE:
On demand or within one year shown BRERF—FR
under current liabilities FARBERE 121,454 88,088
Bank borrowings at: RITEERUTEE:
2015 2014
—E—1hf —E—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FExT
— variable interest rate —ZER=E 121,454 62,920
— fixed interest rate —EER=E - 25,168
121,454 88,088

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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35. BANK BORROWINGS - continued

The contractual variable and fixed interest rates per annum

in respect of bank borrowings were within the following

35. MITEE — &
ARRTEEZAOIDREEFAE
AT olEE R :

ranges:
The Group
EEE
2015 2014
—E—1Lf¥ —E2—mF
% %
Variable rate FE = 7.28 t0 9.00 | 7.78 to 8.40
Fixed rate & E Fl =& N/AFE R 8.10
Notes: it & -

As at 31 March 2015, the secured bank borrowings of
approximately HK$121,454,000 (2014: approximately
HK$62,920,000) were secured by corporate guarantee by
inter-group company, carries variable interest rate at 7.28% to
9% (2014: 7.78% to 8.40%).

As at 31 March 2014, the secured bank borrowings of
approximately HK$25,168,000 were secured by corporate
guarantee by inter-group company, carried at fixed interest

rate at 8.10% per annum.

Details of pledged assets were pledged to bank to secure the
Group's banking facilities, please refer to Note 43.

Details of guarantees provided by related parties are set out in

Note 41(c).

The carrying amount of the Group’s bank borrowings are all
originally denominated in RMB.

(@ M-ZZE—HF=A=+-—RH0 HEHAR
THEKN121,454,0008 T (ZF— Y
F :#962,920,00058 7T ) LLEBE R L TR
MR TIEREERD LIRFR K728
EZIE(=Z—NF:7.78E £8.40
B)LEEFIE R -

by RZZE-OE=ZA=+—-H0 FEHAR
T1EE#25,168,0008 T AEE A A
ARMHATERFERR WRFR R
8 10ELAEEFRTE

(0 FE[ARTEAUERAEEERRT
MECCEREEZFBEESHNE
43 °

(d HEBEZEFREUEERIFBEENAME
41(c) °

() AEBZRITEEZREEZAZIMU
AR®HE-

ERSEERERAR
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36. DEFERRED TAXATION 36.

No deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group and the
Company did not have material temporary difference arising
between the tax bases of liabilities or assets and their

carrying amounts at 31 March 2015 and 2014.

EIERIRA
MRAEER-E-AFR-F-NF
ZAZt-AZEEREERERAR

HECHLELREARGREZR  HA R
EMEEHERERNEENRESMBER
KPR

37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. &
Nominal
value of
Number of ordinary
shares shares
BiERZ
BRinEH RmE{E
HK$'000
TET
Authorised: EE:
At 1 April 2013 Ordinary share of R-ZE—=FNA-BERHEE
HK$0.01 each 0.01BTZ2EBER 38,000,000 380
Increase of ordinary shares 38 IR T 0 1,962,000,000 19,620
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R-Z—EF=A=+—HER
and 31 March 2015 —ZE—MEMA—HR
—E—hFE=H=1+—H 2,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREAE:
At 1 April 2013 R-TZE—=%1MA—H 1 1
Issue of share under the reorganisation 1R 5 B 2T R 7 648,405,299 6,483
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 RZ-ZE—WMFE=ZA=+—HER
and 31 March 2015 —E—MEMA—BR
—E—-ARF=HA=+—H 648,405,300 6,484

190 WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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37. SHARE CAPITAL - continued

Notes:

(a)

The Company was incorporated on 9 July 2012 with
an authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into
38,000,000 shares of par value HK$0.01 each.

On 9 July 2012, one share was allotted and issued in nil
paid form the incorporation share to Codan Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited as subscriber, which was then transferred by
Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited to Greatly Wealth at
nil consideration on the same date.

Pursuant to the written resolutions of our sole Shareholder
passed on 3 September 2013, the authorised share capital
of the Company was increased from HK$380,000 to
HK$20,000,000 by the creation of a further 1,962,000,000
shares.

On 3 September 2013, the Company acquired the entire
issued share capital of Luxuriant Expand from Hua Xia
in consideration of the Company allotting and issuing
648,405,299 fully paid up shares (all credited as fully paid) to
Greatly Wealth and the crediting as fully paid at par of the
incorporation share registered in the name of Greatly Wealth.

Immediately following the completion of the spin-off,
without taking into account of any shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of any options which may be
granted under the share option scheme, the authorised share
capital of the Company will be HK$20,000,000 divided into
2,000,000,000 shares, of which 648,405,300 shares have
been allotted and issued, fully paid or credited as fully paid
and 1,351,594,700 shares remain unissued. Other than the
shares issuable pursuant to the exercise of any options which
may fall to be granted under the share option scheme, or the
exercise of the general mandate referred to in the paragraph
headed “Written resolutions of our sole shareholder dated
24 September 2013” in the prospectus dated 30 September
2013, under this section, the Directors have no present
intention to issue any part of the authorised but unissued
capital of our Company, and without the prior approval of
the members of our Company in general meeting, no issue of
shares will be made which would effectively alter the control
of the Company.

Save as aforesaid, there has been no alteration in the share
capital of the Company since its incorporation.

37. B&¥E — 18
FFaE -

(@) AQXFAR=ZZBE—Z-FELtAhAFEWER
3B YR E R AN £380,0008 T 2 B
38,000,0008% 5 I E {E0.01% jT 1Y AR
3 o

(b)y M=ZZE——F+tHANAB @Codan Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited ({E5& 288
A) BR8] B AT — RR SR FGEEM B
B ZRHHEZRE BB Codan Trust
Company (Cayman) LimitedE & & ZE ¥
KE o

(0 WREE-—RENR-_ZF—=FAA=H
ABNEARBR AQAEE— S
#%1,962,000,0008% B2 13 » #& A A BVEE
% < 8380,00078 7T ¥ £20,000,00078
=

d RZB-Z=FhhA=0 ADFA[EE
WEENNEDBERITRE EFHEA
[ K B 8 K 3% 17648,405,2998% &
EREERG (EBARIEAR) RIRE
BEUABRARNAEETRARE R TG
AR IR o

() EBHEIFRERE THERREBREST
B 7 B2 1% A9 1E (T B8 AR AR XE AT R 1T W A
BITNEMBRSD  RD B EERESE
#20,000,0003% 7t (% %2,000,000,000
B ) - H5648,405,300 R
ERERRT BEIARIESE
1,351,594, 700 B0 I R B 1T  BRIB I&
BRET R TR N EMERERET
FRABHE-_TE—=FhA=1TRHZA
BREFTEHE-ZTE—=FAA=-1+MHN
B —BRREERER| —BFEN
—MEEETEMIRTHORMD N R
BRE - ESEAMESRTALTEE
BERBETRANEMTD  BRER
AEBRERABRRAS ESEHAE T
BOBERLEREARDTEHENRAD -

() BRE#MEN RATDRABEMAL 2
B BASR I S AR (2 B o
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38. RESERVES
The Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014 are

presented in the consolidated statement of changes of

AF=A=+—HLEFE

equity of the consolidated financial statements.

Details of change in the Company’s individual components

38. fE
*EE
AEERE-E-EER-B—WE=
A=F—ALEEZHARARDON
SHREAUBREZELBRED X -

AT 2 AR S i BB SR

of equity are set out below: mT
The Company
b 3N
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
BHRE AHEHE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TEr
At 1 April 2013 R-E-=£mB-A - (7,423) (7,423)
Loss for the year FEEB = (8,355) (8,355)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEZEEBAR - (8,355) (8,355)
Share issuing expenses BB BTHEX (7,653) = (7,653)
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R-ZE-WE=ZBA=+-8FEK
—Z-MFEMNA-H (7,653) (15,778) (23,431)
Loss for the year FEEB = (3,323) (3,323)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREZEFBAE - (3,323) (3,323)
At 31 March 2015 R-Z-EF=A=+—-H (7,653) (19,101) (26,754)

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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39. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates as Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under control of trustees. The Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs to the scheme, this contribution is

matched by employees.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries established
in the PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefits schemes operated by the local government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the retirement benefits to fund the
benefits. The only obligations of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefits schemes are to make the specified

contributions.

39. iR (& 7B &

AEEABBE2REEREERLBY
MAEEE FHCEERAEECE
EDRER FAHRGIAERHNZES
REBEBBHMAARS %R EHER
BETSEHERER-

AEBRPERIZHBRARZEER
ENBRAEE 2AREERMKEF I
BB -ZEMBRRAARFMA 2ET
B 70 bb @) 3R 1R 48 R 5t 8 ALK BARR IR AR
B REEMBEABEREE 2 E—FE
RIELAEHRR-

ERSEERERAR
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 40. BERRHEET R

194

On 24 September 2013, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) whereby the
Board can grant options for the subscription of our shares
to the employees, managerial staff and senior employees
and those other persons that the Board considers that
they will contribute or have contributed to the Group (the
“Participants”) as described in the Share Option Scheme
in order to serve as compliment and to reciprocate their
contribution to the Group. The maximum number of shares
that can be issued according to the Share Option Scheme
was 64,840,530 shares, which is equivalent to 10% of
the issued capital of the Company after completion of
the Listing on the Stock Exchange. The number of options
that may be granted pursuant to the terms of the Share
Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares
immediately after the completion of the Listing. Unless
otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted
to a Participant under the options shall not exceed 1%
within any 12-month period (other than those granted to
the substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or the independent non-executive Directors
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules)), or the total number of shares that may be granted
under the options to the substantial shareholders of the
Company or the independent non-executive Directors or any
of their respective associates shall not exceed 0.1% of the
shares in issue of the Company from time to time. There is
no minimum period that the options must be held before
they become exercisable, and the options granted shall be
exercised within the period decided by the Board; however
no options shall be exercised 10 years after they have been
granted. The exercise price of the option shall be the higher
of (a) the closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the
average closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) nominal
value of the share. Each grantee shall pay a consideration of
HK$1.00 at the time the option is granted. The Share Option
Scheme shall take effect from the date it is adopted and
shall remain effective within a period of 10 years from that
date.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

R-ZE-—Z=FhRA=-+tHA KXAAK
—EERELT B (TBRETE]) 5B
I EEZEARAEEES THAER
ERBENREREGEMAESER
ABESHAEKHAEEELEERNZ
ZHMALT([BEAT)REBRE
URBADNBRG EUEOERER TR
BRERFEEHAEEFELENERM R
BERESITRTHERSROBEAR
64,840,530 IR 17 » #ZE AR D B REE R
FIER LT BEERITRANI0% - RIE
BREMEGRATRENBEREZHE T
BEBEEERNLELTERAAERITR
B10% BRIEATRRERRBRAE
STHE  BRITTRBERERFSEA
THROGEBAE@M2EARNTEES
1% (BAAARETERR(EXZR LR
A)RBUFATESAHESAZHE
AT (EXRRLETRE) BEERIN) »
REBREIRFAQLATERRESE
VIHITESHAHESANTMBEA
THROBETEBEBERAR TS &
TRMAN0N% - BEREBREATTE
FIARENRERRE mERHNBRER
RESERENHBRTE BULERER
REAREEERBI0FBTE - BRET
FEARQRONBLBHBEIMSA
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REBHAREEAXS ABIMEARE
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ZBEEE SEABAERERBREZR
FA41.0058 T 2 1B - BB IR FE ST B AR
MEBEN BEEZARTI0FHERMD
REM -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm © B 15 ¥R R B 53X

For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

40. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

41.

Since the Share Option Scheme was adopted, any share have
been granted during the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014
Nil).

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had entered into transactions with
related parties which, in the opinion of directors, were
carried out at normal commercial terms and in the ordinary

course of the Group’s business, as shown below:

(a) Key management personnel remuneration:

40. FERz B T8 — iR

41.

ARABRETIUR REBEE=-ZF—-1
FZA=T-HLFEIRRLEEMAR
B (ZZ2—F &) -

EXEABALES

MRGEMBEHRERMET2HME D i E
EN AEBEGHEHBEBRALTETTIR
5 BEERB ZEXZNIRETEMER
RARNAEE B BEXBBEPET JIR
PA{1 I

(a) X EEBARHM:

2015 2014
—2-HfF | —T—@NOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THExT
Short term employees benefits EHEERA 634 640
Provident fund contributions ANESHR 14 23
648 663
BESEERARAR

2014/2015 F 3R
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41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS - continued

(b) The transactions with related parties during

41. EXFRBALTEZ S &

(b) REBERRE  BEABALETZ

the reporting periods: ZHWMTF:
2015 2014
—2-hF —E-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FiERT
Sales to fellow subsidiaries: HETRANMB AR
— Edward Hospital Company Limited —EEEEFEERARLDH 1,264 3,962
— Jiaxing City Shuguang Western —EETBAXPEBESER
and Chinese Hospital Limited BRAF 53 19
— Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital Co. Limited —EkiBhEEERAER AT 100 =
Administrative service fee paid to I FERAERAAZ
the ultimate holding company: EERKE:
— Hua Xia —#F - 6,384
Licence fee paid to the ultimate TN FRAERARZHITE:
holding company:
- Hua Xia —¥E 412 411
Rental expenses paid to the spouse of TR FHEBERLEZEBZ
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong: HelxX: 117 97

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS - continued

(c) Mr. Yung Kwok Leong is a substantial shareholder
of ultimate holding company, he has entered into a
personal guarantee agreement on 14 March 2014
with China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited to secure
banking facilities on behalf of the Group in aggregate
amount of RMB10,000,000 for one and half years,
and had been settled during the year ended 31 March
2015.

The Group had entered into a number of transactions with
connected parties which, upon the listing of shares on the
Stock Exchange, became connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. These transactions are continuing
transactions exempt from the independent shareholder’s
approval requirements under the Listing Rules. The details

information has been disclosed on page 51 to 57.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, no member of the Group
was engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material
importance and no litigation or claim of material importance
was known to the directors to be pending or threatened

against any member of the Group.

41.

42.

EXHABALXS &

() SERLEE (RERERAFAZEE
BR)NR—Z—NF=A+MAEHR
FIRITR M BR A AT ZEAER
HE RERAEEMETEELE
AR #%10,000,000tEHIER B
H—FY¥MZRERBE_2—1
F=ZA=+—-HLFECHE-

AEBHEAELTLZERS  RROE
ERETET® RIBELETRE ZERE
FRAAARAZBEAL ZEXRZERH
BRE MBRETLMHAREBETAES
VYRRBEZRE FHERERESE
STE#E

KRAR/

R-BE-—HEFR-ZE-—NF=ZA=+—
B AEEKE D AMEY REMERF
SR ERMEEAA AEBEEMK
ERRANBERTHITEARRE 2
BEARFAREE

v

b2l
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43. PLEDGED OF ASSETS
At the end of the reporting period, the followings assets
were pledged to bank to secure the Group's banking

facilities in Note 35:

43. EEEW
R|EMEK THEEDERTRITUS
AEEEEM IS RTHE

2015 2014
—E—AfF —E—MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET THExT
Pledged bank deposits (Note 31) EHEIFRITER (MFEE31) 12,970 17,431
Prepaid lease payments (Note 21) FE S ERE (MEE21) 1,909 1,979
Investment properties (Note 22) BREWE (HFE22) 8,093 8,306
22,972 27,716
44. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 44, EEHR %R
The Group as lessee EREESEBEA
At the end of each reporting period, the Group were REBREHR  AEBRBEFTHELE
committed to make the following future minimum lease HE (A -—FE+FIME)pEEL
payments in respect of land and buildings rented under non- WREFEHIZTWARREEES TR
cancellable operating leases with lease terms from one to AENT
ten years which fall due as follows:
2015 2014
“E—-1F —E-MmEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within one year —F R 24,864 14,581
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ZHF (BEEEWE) 42,180 17,883
Over five years FELE 58 441
67,102 32,905

198 WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015




45.

46.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm © B 15 ¥R R B 53X

For the year ended 31 March 2015 E=ZE—RF=A=1+—HIFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group and the

Company did not have any significant capital commitments.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent events

On 12 May 2015, Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited (“Huihao
Hong Kong”), Fuzhou Ren An Medical Technology
Limited# (BM-ZEBENEBR Q) ("Ren An”) and
Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd (“Fuzhou Haihao"”) entered into the Joint Venture
Agreement, pursuant to which Ren An agreed to make
a capital contribution of approximately RMB26 million to
the registered capital and the capital reserve of Fuzhou
Huihao. The Capital Increase constituted a deemed disposal
of Wanjia's equity interest in the Fuzhou Huihao and
resulted that the equity interest of (“Huihao Hong Kong")
in Fuzhou Huihao was diluted from 100% to 75% and
the Fuzhou Huihao is held as to 75% by ("Huihao Hong
Kong"”) and as to 25% by Ren An.

On 14 May 2015, the Company entered into the Placing
Agreement with the Placing Agent pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to place, through the
Placing Agent, on a best efforts basis, the Convertible Notes
with principal amounts aggregating up to HK$84,292,000
to the Placees at the initial Conversion Price of HK$0.65
per Conversion Share (“the Placing”). Based on the initial
Conversion Price of HK$0.65 per Conversion Share, a total
of 129,680,000 Conversion Shares will be allotted and
issued upon exercise of the conversion rights attaching to
the Convertible Notes in full. The Placing was completed on
1 June 2015.

45.

46.
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BITLEEHR Bt CZRAEMRRE
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#) AR %26,000,0007T © 38 & # B 1R 1E
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ZH A E75% K 25% 5 o

R-Z—AFREATHWA AAFHEEE
REBITLERED R Bt XAREHMHK
HEZEBREREBER|SHEEUDNS
BRESREBRRDSBIRELRSE
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FREA(REFEHR]) R PERE
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Five Years Financial Summary

hEMBERE

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the

HEECTREERYBRRRBREZLSE
ERHEREYRFEC2XEREEREREZ

published audited financial statements and the prospectus, is set BESHHNOT :
out below:
RESULTS R
For the year ended 31 March
HE=A=+-ALEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Z$-f%f | ZZ-mE CZB-=F CZB-"f CZB—-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TET TET TR
Turnover ExE 1,567,687 2,096,455 1,885,369 1,712,147 1,357,679
Cost of sales HERA (1,407,842) |  (1,906,991)  (1,721,210)  (1,551,795) (1,224,365
Gross profit £7 159,845 189,464 164,159 160,352 133,314
Other revenue Hitrlh iz 6,379 7,543 7,729 6,258 3,264
Other (loss)/gain, net 2 (F8) s F58 (122) 746 1,078 1,922 231
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREFE (785,169) = = = =
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEER (90,590) (70,524) (61,397) (54,899) (38,929
Administrative expenses THEX (46,854) (47,033) (46,802) (40,163) (41,233)
(Loss)/profit from operations BEEE (FR) g% (756,511) 80,196 64,767 73,470 56,648
Finance costs BRER (8,819) (6,015) (4,090) (4,928) (4,388)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRRE (5R) 2% (765,330) 74,181 60,677 68,542 52,260
Taxation b8 (7,950) (25,113) (18,772) (23,210) (19,420
(Loss)/profit for the year FEE (GR) 2 (773,280) 49,068 41,905 45332 32,840
(Loss)/profit for the year DUTATBEEEE
attributable to: (F8),/ &7
Owners of the Company KRAREBA (772,949) 48,920 41,763 45,228 32,765
Non-controlling interests FERER (331) 148 142 104 75
(773,280) 49,068 41,905 45,332 32,840
As at 31 March
R=ZR=+-H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—Z-1f | —E-QmFE —EB-ZF C"E--f “E--f
HK$,000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TEr TET TERx
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RERAR
Total assets BEE 655,340 1,432,719 1,390,923 1,293,698 1,206,595
Total liabilities mesE 372,296 (386,996)  (1,257,722) (1,203,905 (1,168,247
Total equity ERAE 283,044 1,045,723 133,201 89,793 38,348
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